
AGENDA 
ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS, AND WATER RESOURCES 

COMMITTEE MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY* 

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 14, 2022 
10:00 A.M. 

AGENCY HEADQUARTERS 
BOARD ROOM 

6075 KIMBALL AVENUE, BUILDING A 
 CHINO, CALIFORNIA 91708 

VIEW THE MEETING LIVE ONLINE AT IEUA.ORG 

TELEPHONE ACCESS: (415) 856-9169 / Conf Code: 813 028 107# 

PURSUANT TO AB361 AND RESOLUTION NO. 2022-9-2, ADOPTED BY THE IEUA BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS ON SEPTEMBER 7, 2022, IEUA BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS WILL CONTINUE 
TO BE CONDUCTED THROUGH TELECONFERENCE. IN AN EFFORT TO PROTECT PUBLIC HEALTH 

AND PREVENT THE SPREAD OF COVID-19, THERE WILL BE NO PUBLIC LOCATION AVAILABLE 
FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING IN PERSON. 

The public may participate and provide public comment during the meeting by dialing the number provided 
above.   Comments may also be submitted by email to the Board Secretary/Office Manager Denise 

Garzaro at dgarzaro@ieua.org prior to the completion of the Public Comment section of the meeting. 
Comments will be distributed to the Board of Directors. 

CALL TO ORDER 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Members of the public may address the Board on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Board; 
however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  Those persons 
wishing to address the Board on any matter, whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to 
email the Board Secretary/Office Manager prior to the public comment section or request to address 
the Board during the public comments section of the meeting.  Comments will be limited to three 
minutes per speaker.  Thank you. 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require 
two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a unanimous 
vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action 
came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

*A Municipal Water District

mailto:dgarzaro@ieua.org


Engineering, Operations, & Water Resources Committee  
September 14, 2022 
Page 2 
 
1. CONSENT ITEMS  
 

A. MINUTES 
 Approve Minutes of the August 10, 2022 Engineering, Operations, and 

Water Resources Committee meeting. 
 
B. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT BUDGET TRANSFER 

Staff recommends that the Committee/Board: 
 
1. Approve a FY 2022/23 transfer in the amount of $60,000 from the RP-

5 Expansion to 30 MGD, Project No. EN19001 capital budget, to the 
RP-5 Expansion to 30 MGD, Project No. EN19001 operating budget in 
the Regional Capital (RC) Fund; 
 

2. Approve a FY 2022/23 transfer in the amount of $60,000 from the RP-
5 Biosolids Facility, Project No. EN19006 capital budget, to RP-5 
Biosolids Facility, Project No. EN19006 operating budget in the 
Regional Capital (RC) Fund; and 
 

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute the budget transfer. 
 
C. ARCHITECTURAL MASTER SERVICE CONTRACT AMENDMENT  

Staff recommends that the Committee/Board: 
 

1. Approve a contract amendment for the Architectural Master Service 
Contract with Gillis + Panichapan Architects, Inc. in the amount of 
$725,000 increasing the contract from $700,000 to $1,425,000 (204%) 
increase); and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract amendment, 
subject to non-substantive changes. 

 
 

2. ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. CHINO BASIN PROGRAM PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT AMENDMENT 
Staff recommends that the Committee/Board: 
 
1. Award a professional consulting services contract amendment to 

Brown and Caldwell in the amount of $2,855,000, increasing the 
contract from $3,978,506 to revised not-to-exceed amount of 
$6,833,506; and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract amendment, 
subject to non-substantive changes. 

 
 
 



Engineering, Operations, & Water Resources Committee  
September 14, 2022 
Page 3 
 

B. COLLECTION SYSTEM CONDITION ASSESSMENT AND 
OPTIMIZATION PROJECT FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 PROJECT BUDGET 
AUGMENTATION 
Staff recommends that the Committee/Board: 
 

1. Approve a FY 2022/23 project budget augmentation for the Regional 
System Asset Management Project, No. EN19024, in the amount of 
$50,237, from $329,878 to $380,115 in the Regional Operations and 
Maintenance (10800) Fund; 
 

2. Approve a FY 2022/23 project budget augmentation for the NRW 
Manhole and Pipeline Project, No. EN19028, in the amount of $393,398, 
from $70,000 to $463,398 in the Non-Reclaimable Wastewater (10500) 
Fund; and 
 

3. Authorize the General Manager to approve the budget augmentation. 
 

C. RECHARGE MASTER PLAN UPDATE PROJECT – BUDGET INCREASE, 
AGREEMENT AMENDMENT, AND CONSTRUCTION CHANGE ORDER 
APPROVAL 
Staff recommends that the Committee/Board: 
 

1. Approve the total project budget augmentation for RW15003.00 in Fiscal 
Year 2022/23 from $24,004,424 to $27,260,512; 
 

2. Approve the second amendment to IEUA and CBWM’s Cost Sharing 
Agreement, Task Order No. 9, for the project under RW15003.06; 

 
3. Approve the construction change order with MNR Construction, Inc. for 

Project No. RW15003.06 at a not-to-exceed amount of $3,161,995 
which increases the contract from $15,669,068.27 to $18,831.063.27 
(20% increase); and 

 
4. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contracts, subject to non-

substantive changes. 
 

 
3. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. RECYCLED WATER GROUNDWATER RECHARGE UPDATE 
(POWERPOINT) 
 

B. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT UPDATE (POWERPOINT) 
 

RECEIVE AND FILE INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
C. ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PROJECT 

UPDATES (POWERPOINT) 



Engineering, Operations, & Water Resources Committee  
September 14, 2022 
Page 4 
 
4. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS 

 
 

5. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
 
6. COMMITTEE MEMBER REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
ADJOURN  
 

 
 

 DECLARATION OF POSTING  
 
I, Denise Garzaro, CMC, Board Secretary/Office Manager of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, a Municipal Water 
District, hereby certify that, per Government Code Section 54954.2, a copy of this agenda has been posted at the 
Agency’s main office, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, CA and on the Agency’s website at www.ieua.org at least 
seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting date and time above.  

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate 
in this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary at (909) 993-1736 or dgarzaro@ieua.org, 48 
hours prior to the scheduled meeting so that IEUA can make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility. 

http://www.ieua.org/
mailto:dgarzaro@ieua.org


Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

 
  
 

              1A 

 

           CONSENT 

                         ITEM 



 

  

 
 

 
 

 MINUTES 
ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS, AND WATER RESOURCES 

COMMITTEE MEETING 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY* 

AGENCY HEADQUARTERS, CHINO, CA 
 

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 10, 2022 
10:00 A.M. 

 
COMMITTEE MEMBER PRESENT via Video/Teleconference 

Marco Tule, Chair  
Michael Camacho, Director 

 
STAFF PRESENT 

Christiana Daisy, P.E., Deputy General Manager  
Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager 
Jerry Burke, Director of Engineering 

 Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager 
 Brandon Gonzalez Contreras, Technology Specialist I  
 Michael Larios, Technology Specialist I 
 Randy Lee, Director of Operations & Maintenance 
 Ryan Love, Deputy Manager of Operations  
 Jason Marseilles, Manager of Engineering  
 Kanes Pantayatiwong, Manager of Information Technology 
 Alyson Piguee, Director of External & Government Affairs 
 Travis Sprague, Principal Engineer 

   Justin Tao, Associate Engineer  
   Brian Wilson, P.E., CCM, Senior Engineer 
 
STAFF PRESENT via Video/Teleconference 

 Lisa Dye, Director of Human Resources 
 Don Hamlett, Director of Information Technology  

Michael Hurley, Director of Planning & Resources 
 Elizabeth Hurst, Chino Basin Program Manager 
 Jennifer Hy-Luk, Acting Executive Assistant 
 Cathleen Pieroni, Senior Policy Advisor  

   Sushmitha Reddy, Manager of Laboratories 
 Jeanina Romero, Executive Assistant 
 Victoria Salazar, Associate Engineer 
 Megan Trott, Associate Engineer 
 Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit  
  
 

CALL TO ORDER 
Committee Chair Marco Tule called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.  He gave the public the 
opportunity to comment and provided instructions for unmuting the conference line. There were no 
public comments received or additions to the agenda. 
 



Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 
August 10, 2022 
Page 2 
 

 

1A.  CONSENT ITEM 
The Committee:  
 

 Approved Minutes of the July 13, 2022 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources 
Committee meeting. 
 

 
2A – 2D.  ACTION ITEMS 
The Committee:  

 
 Recommended that the Board:  

  
1. Approve the award to provide the supply of ferric chloride chemicals, Contract 

No. 4600003169, to California Water Technologies, for a one-year contract for 
a not-to-exceed amount of $1,800,000; and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract; 
 

 and  
 

1. Approve the award to provide the supply of sodium bisulfite chemicals, Contract 
No. 4600003128, to Univar, for a one-year contract, with four one-year renewal 
options, for a potential total contract term of five years for a not-to-exceed 
amount of $4,900,000; and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract; 
 
 and 

 
1. Award a consultant contract for the Montclair Force Main Improvements, Project 

No. EN21045, to Stantec Consulting Services Inc., for a not-to-exceed amount 
of $688,290; and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-
substantive changes; 

 
 and  

 
1. Approve the sole source purchase for continued technical support services with 

Schneider Electric, for three years, for a not-to-exceed amount of $271,046; and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract; 
  
as Consent Calendar items on the August 17, 2022 Board meeting agenda. 
 

 
 

3A – 3B. INFORMATION ITEMS 
The following information items were presented or received and filed by the Committee: 
 

 RP-5 Expansion Project Update 
 Engineering and Construction Management Project Updates 

 
 



Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 
August 10, 2022 
Page 3 
 

 

4. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS 
Deputy General Manager Christiana Daisy stated that IEUA’s water quality laboratory is now 
accredited to perform PFAS analysis in both potable and non-potable water matrices. IEUA is 
required to monitor both RP-1 and RP-4 recycled water sites for groundwater recharge on a weekly 
basis and the new NPDES permit requires quarterly monitoring of influents and effluents at all four 
regional plants. The new permit went into effect on August 1, so this accreditation was very 
timely, allowing the Agency to perform in-house compliance testing to support IEUA's NPDES and 
GWR permits. 
 

IEUA has received the District Transparency Certificate of Excellence from the Special District 
Leadership Foundation in recognition of its outstanding efforts to promote transparency and good 
governance. IEUA has maintained this distinction since 2015. The award is a testament to the 
Agency’s commitment to open government. To receive the award, the Agency demonstrated the 
completion of essential governance transparency requirements, including conducting ethics training 
for all board members, properly conducting open and public meetings, and filing financial 
transactions and compensation reports to the State Controller in a timely manner. 
 

Lasty, IEUA's Manager of Facilities & Water System Programs and 2019 California Water 
Environment Association (CWEA) Emerging Leader, Lucia Diaz, was recently featured in CWEA's 
Clean Water Magazine. 
 
 
5. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 
Director Camacho congratulated Ms. Diaz on her feature in CWEA’s Clean Water Magazine.  
 

 
6. COMMITTEE MEMBER REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
There were no Committee member requested future agenda items.  
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business, Committee Chair Tule adjourned the meeting at 10:39 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Denise Garzaro 
Board Secretary/Office Manager 
 
*A Municipal Water District 
 
APPROVED:   SEPTEMBER 14, 2022 



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

 
  
 

              1B 

 

           CONSENT 

                         ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

RP-5 Expansion Project Budget Transfer

On July 15, 2020, Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) awarded a $329,982,900 construction
contract to W.M. Lyles Co., for the Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 5 (RP-5) Expansion
Project. The RP-5 Expansion will expand the plant’s liquids treatment capacity to 22.5 MGD
and provide up to 30 MGD of solids treatment from both Carbon Canyon Water Reclamation
Facility (CCWRF) and RP-5.

RP-5 plant prior to the start of construction had four secondary clarifiers. The RP-5 Expansion
Project demolished one secondary clarifier to allow the construction of Phase 1 of the
Membrane Bioreactor (MBR). To improve settleability and reduce other process impacts,
polymer is added at the aeration basin effluent box prior to the remaining three secondary
clarifiers ensuring compliance. The polymer will no longer be required once Phase 1 of the
MBR goes into operation.

Staff is recommending a budget augmentation from RP-5 Expansion projects capital budgets to
the RP-5 Expansion projects O&M budgets to support the cost of chemicals needed for the
RP-5 Expansion.

1. Approve a FY 2022/23 tranfer in the amount of $60,000 from the RP-5 Expansion to 30
MGD, Project No. EN19001 capital budget, to the RP5 Expansion to 30 MGD, Project No.
EN19001 operating budget in the Regional Capital (RC) Fund;

2.Approve a FY 2022/23 transfer in the amount of $60,000 from the RP-5 Biosolids Facility,
Project No. EN19006 capital budget, to the RP5 Biosolids Facility, Project No. EN19006
operating budget in the Regional Capital (RC) Fund; and

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute the budget transfer.

$ 120,000

EN19001-RP5 Expansion to 30 mgd
EN19006/RP-5 Biosolids Facility

If approved, the capital budget in Fiscal Year 2022/23 for the RP-5 Expansion, Project Nos.
EN19001 and EN19006 will decrease $120,000 and the O & M budget for EN19001 and
EN19006 in the Regional Capital (RC) Fund will increase $120,000.

1000 10900 595000 127155 EN19001/EN19006

09/14/22
09/14/22

Engineering, Operations & Water Resources
Finance & Administration

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y Y

10900 505000 1271551000

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The RP-5 Expansion Project is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater
Management, specifically the Asset Management and Water Quality objectives that IEUA will
ensure that systems are well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, sustainably
managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use to protect public health, the
environment, and meet anticipated regulatory requirements.

On July 15, 2020, the Board of Directors awarded a Construction Contract to W.M. Lyles Co., in
the amount of $329,982,900.
On November 20, 2019, the Board of Directors awarded a contract to Arcadis, for construction
management services for a not-to-exceed amount of $21,125,523.
On November 20, 2019, the Board of Directors awarded a contract amendment to Parsons, for
engineering services during construction for a not-to-exceed amount of $12,589,469.

A Finding of Consistency with IEUA's Program Environmental Impact Report and a CEQA Plus
evaluation for SRF Loan Funding have been completed.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint

Program Environmental Impact Report (Finding of Consistency)

22192



 

 

Attachment 1 



RP-5 Expansion Project : 
Capital to Operating Budget Transfer

Project Nos. EN19001/EN19006

Brian Wilson, P.E. CCM
Principal Engineer
September 2022



2

Issue/Solution:



3

Project Budget EN19001 & EN19006

Description O & M Capital Combined

Design Phase Services $0 $26,406,753 $26,406,753
Construction Services $0 $43,361,716 $43,361,716
Construction $120,000 $376,061,190 $376,181,190

RP-5 Expansion Bid $0 $329,982,900 $329,982,900 

Executed Change Orders $0 $3,783,454 $3,783,454

Contingency $0 $29,094,836 $29,094,836

Offsite Facilities Allowance $0 $12,000,000 $12,000,000 

Contingency $0 $1,200,000 $1,200,000 
Chemicals (this action) $120,000 $0 $120,000 

Total Project Cost: $120,000 $445,829,659 $445,949,659 

Total Requested Project Budget: $120,000 $450,000,000 $450,000,000 



1. Approve a FY 2022/23 capital budget transfer in the amount of $60,000.00 from the RP-5 
Expansion to 30 MGD, Project No. EN19001, to the RP-5 Expansion to 30 MGD, Project 
No. EN19001, O&M budget in the Regional Capital (RC) Fund; 

2. Approve a FY 2022/23 capital budget transfer in the amount of $60,000.00 from the RP-5 
Biosolids Facility, Project No. EN19006, to the RP-5 Biosolids Facility, Project No. 
EN19006, O&M budget in the Regional Capital (RC) Fund; and

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute the budget transfer. 

4

Recommendation 

The RP-5 Expansion Project is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater Management and Water 
Reliability, specifically the Asset Management and Water Quality objectives that IEUA will ensure that systems are well 
maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, sustainably managed, and can accommodate changes in regional 

water use to protect public health, the environment, and meet anticipated regulatory requirements.



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

1C 

       CONSENT 

      ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

 Architectural Master Services Contract Amendment

In April 2019, the Board of Directors approved a five-year master service contract with Gillis +
Panichapan Architects, Inc. (GPa) for a not-to-exceed amount of $700,000 with the option to
extend this contract by an additional two years, if needed. The initial contract amount was based
on foreseeable work at that time. GPa's work has been exceptional during these past three years.

Based on the planned projects that will require architectural design services in the ten year
capital improvement program and the past three year's level of effort on the projects GPa has
been awarded, staff is requesting an additional $725,000 to the current contract value which will
increase the contract to $1,425,000 (204% increase) and allow the Agency to continue to utilize
their services to the end of the contract term.

1. Approve a contract amendment for the Architectural Master Service Contract with Gillis +
Panichapan Architects, Inc. in the amount of $725,000 increasing the contract from $700,000 to
$1,425,000 (204% increase); and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract amendment, subject to
non-substantive changes.

Multiple capital projects and department O&M budget under various program funds.

There is no direct impact on IEUA's fiscal year budget as a result of this action. This contract
is for work which will be required on various projects. As such, no separate funding is needed 
for this contract.

N/A

09/14/22Engineering, Operations & Water Resources

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Architectural Master Service Contract is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of
Wastewater Management that ensures quality asset management and that systems are planned,
constructed, and managed to protect public health, the environment, and meet anticipated
regulatory requirements.

On April 19, 2019, the Board of Directors awarded a five-year Architectural Master Service
Contract to Gillis + Panichapan Architects, Inc. for a not-to-exceed amount of $700,000.

CEQA exempts a variety of projects from compliance with the statute. This project qualifies for
a Statutory Exemption as defined in Section 15262 of the State CEQA Guidelines. When the
project will be implemented will be subject to future environmental evaluation.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint
Attachment 2 - Master Service Contract Amendment - GPa

Statutory Exemption



 

 

Attachment 1 



Architectural Master Services Contract 
Amendment

Matthew A. Poeske, P.E.

Senior Engineer

September 2022



Background

2

—Completed Work
• IEUA roofing (5 Projects)
• SCADA Migration Server Room 

Design
• Wetlands Education Center
• RP-1 Lab and Administration 

Building Pre-Design

—Future Work:
• IEUA roofing
• RP-1 Lab & Administration Bldgs. 

Rehabilitation
• SCADA Migration CM
• Misc. project managers’ directed 

work

Completed and Future Projects at RP-1 Admin. and Lab Buildings

RP-1 Lab Repurpose Pre-
Design

RP-1 Administration Building 
Roof and Pre-Design



Contract Amendment Overview

3

Description Estimated Cost
Design Services to Date (3-Years): $601,785

Complete $579,460
Pending $22,325

Two Year Contract Extension: $461,368
Design Services to Date/3 Years $200,595

Calculated  2-year Contract Extension  (2 X Design Services Average) $401,190
Contingency at 15% $60,178

Pending Future TYCIP Projects: $362,174
RP-1 Administration Building Rehabilitation $78,835
RP-1 Lab Rehabilitation $123,995
RP-1 Admin Building Rehab Construction Support $11,825
RP-1 Lab Rehabilitation Construction Support $18,599
Phase IV Roofing $81,680
Contingency at 15% $47,240

Subtotal 7-Year Cost (Rounded): $1,425,000
Current Contract: $700,000

Amendment  (this action) $725,000

Revised Contract: $1,425,000

Contract Duration Date
Original Contract 5-Years April 2024

2-Year Contract Extension Terms



Recommendation

4

The Architectural Master Service Contract is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater Management that 
ensures quality asset management and that systems are planned, constructed, and managed to protect public health, the 

environment, and meet anticipated regulatory requirements.

• Approve a contract amendment for the Architectural Master Service Contract
with Gillis + Panichapan Architects, Inc. in the amount of $725,000 increasing
the contract from $700,000 to $1,425,000 (204% increase); and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract amendment, subject to
non-substantive changes.



Attachment 2 



4600002710-001 (GD)   

8/4/2022 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT NUMBER:  4600002710-001 
FOR PROVISION OF 

ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE is made and entered by and between the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency (IEUA), a Municipal Water District, organized and existing in the County of 
San Bernardino under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (hereinafter referred 
to as "Agency" or “IEUA”), and Gillis + Panichapan Architects, Inc., of Costa Mesa, CA 
(hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and shall revise the Contract as amended:  

SECTION 2.A.3, TERM, IS REVISED TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

An additional term of this Contract shall commence on May 1, 2024, and shall 
continue in effect through April 30, 2026, unless terminated as specified in section 
21, (Termination for Convenience), or in the event the maximum amount of this 
Contract is exceeded as set forth in section 5 (Compensation and Changes). 

SECTION 5. COMPENSATION AND CHANGES, PARAGRAPH A. IS REVISED TO 
READ AS FOLLOWS: 

A. An additional $725,000.00 will be added to the total not-to-exceed compensation
payable to the Contractor, such that the Contractor’s total compensation for
services rendered under this Agreement, as amended, shall not exceed the
aggregate sum of $1,425,000.00 for all services satisfactorily provided during the
term of this Contract. The Consultant shall not be paid for any amount exceeding
the NOT-TO-EXCEED amount, nor for work completed beyond the expiration
date without an Amendment to the Contract.

ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THIS CONTRACT REMAIN UNCHANGED 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9895DC12-A5FE-4FE3-844E-855926C649C2



4600002710-001 (GD)   

8/4/2022 

WITNESSETH, that the parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed as per the 
above amendment item, and in doing so have caused this document to become 
incorporated into the Contract Documents. 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: GILLIS + PANICHAPAN ARCHITECTS, INC.: 
*A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

_______________________   ________ _________________________ ________ 
Shivaji Deshmukh P.E.                (Date)    Jack Panichapan                                           (Date) 
General Manager   Principal/CEO 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9895DC12-A5FE-4FE3-844E-855926C649C2

8/4/2022



Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

2A 
           ACTION 

ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

Chino Basin Program Professional Consulting Services Contract Amendment

In July 2018, the California Water Commission (CWC) approved a maximum conditional grant
funding of $206.9M under Proposition 1 - Water Storage Investment Program (WSIP). In
August 2021, an early funding agreement of $8.9M was executed to assist with planning-related
activities such as program administration, technical feasibility studies, environmental evaluation,
and regulatory coordination to maintain eligibility for the funding. Since April 2022, an
additional $8M were received, increasing the funding amount to $215M.

Brown and Caldwell was awarded a consulting services contract in March 2019 to provide
preliminary design services for the PUT and TAKE facilities but it was amended to develop a
technical feasibility study for the CWC feasibility determination in November 2021. This
amendment will provide engineering services for preliminary design reports of the advanced
water purification facility, injection wells, the Rialto recycled water intertie and permitting
strategy. Their continued professional services will provide IEUA with the best value.

The proposed contract amendment for Brown and Caldwell is for a not-to-exceed amount of
$2,855,000, a 72% increase, and will provide continued services through 2023.

1. Award a professional consulting services contract amendment to Brown and Caldwell in the
amount of $2,855,000, increasing the contract from $3,978,506 to a revised not-to-exceed
amount of $6,833,506;

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract amendment, subject to
non-substantive changes.

The contract amendment for a not-to-exceed amount of $2,855,000 will be funded by Project
No. PL19005 in the Water Resources (WW) fund.

09/14/22Engineering, Operations & Water Resources 

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The CBP supports IEUA's business goal of Water Reliability, of implementing an integrated 
water resources management plan providing a reliable and cost-effective water supply and 
promoting sustainable water use throughout the region.

On March 20, 2019, IEUA's Board of Directors approved a project budget amendment of $8.7M,
increasing the project budget from $6.3M to $15M for the Chino Basin Program and awarded a
consulting services contract to Brown and Caldwell for a not-to-exceed amount of $3,978,506.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint
Attachment 2 - Consultant Contract

Not Applicable

22200



Chino Basin Program
Professional Consulting Services Contract Amendment

Elizabeth Hurst
Chino Basin Program Manager

September 21, 2022



2

Background

July 2018 Chino Basin Program (CBP) received the conditional funding award of $207M

March 2019 Brown and Caldwell (B&C) awarded an engineering services contract for 
preliminary design for CBP components

October 2021 B&C completed the technical feasibility study for submission to the California 
Water Commission (CWC)

November 2021 CWC determined CBP's feasibility and eligibility for Water Storage Investment 
Program funding

May 2022 IEUA Board of Directors adopted the Program Environmental Impact Report



3

Key Roles

Role Consultant
Program Management (State) GEI
Preliminary Design Brown and Caldwell
Owner’s Agent TBD
AWPF Design Builder TBD
Injection Wells TBD
Rialto External Recycled Water TBD



4

Chino Basin Program Facilities



5

CBP Preliminary Design Schedule



• Perform a preliminary site investigation of RP-4
• Define process design criteria, site layout, facility

implementation, and regulatory compliance
• Prepare project technical requirements for a

progressive design build delivery approach
• Evaluate CEC compliance strategy such as

regulatory requirements and treatment
technologies

• Develop cost estimate in 2023 dollars
• Prepare a preliminary design report

6

Contract Amendment Scope of Work:
Advanced Water Purification Facility



• Develop well siting criteria and evaluate
preliminary well sites including test injection
well sites

• Perform exploratory borings and
geophysical investigation using seismic
reflection survey

• Conduct geochemical aquifer analysis from
soil samples and testing

• Provide oversight during test injection well
construction and testing and document
results

• Develop a cost estimate in 2023 dollars
• Prepare a preliminary design report

7

Contract Amendment Scope of Work:
Injection and Monitoring Wells



• Conduct workshops/meetings with
IEUA staff and stakeholders

• Conduct pipeline alignment alternatives
analysis, utility research, direct use
opportunities, pump station siting

• Prepare preliminary design drawings
for selected alignment alternative and
pump station

• Develop a cost estimate in 2023 dollars
• Prepare a preliminary design report

8

Contract Amendment Scope of Work:
City of Rialto Recycled Water Intertie



• Conduct workshops/meetings with
regulatory agencies to discuss compliance
and expectations

• Prepare a permitting plan for PUT
infrastructure

• Develop regulatory strategy to define
requirements and expectations

• Prepare a technical memorandum

9

Contract Amendment Scope of Work:
Permitting Plan and Regulatory Strategy



10

Project Budget

Description Cost
Preliminary Design/Technical Feasibility Contract $3,978,506

Brown and Caldwell Expenditures ($2,398,506)

Remaining Contract Balance $1,580,000

Preliminary Design Services: $4,435,000

Ongoing coordination $375,000

Advanced Water Purification Facility $1,399,000

City of Rialto Recycled Water Intertie $592,000

Injection wells $1,894,000

Permitting plan $175,000

Contract Amendment $2,855,000

Total Revised Cost for Preliminary Design Services $6,833,506

Project Milestone Date

Preliminary Design Completion

Advanced Water Purification Facility May 2023

City of Rialto Recycled Water Intertie May 2023

Injection wells May 2023

Permitting plan March 2023

CBP Planning Budget Cost
Current Budget $15,000,000

Expenditures to date ($6,222,750)

Approved Early Funding Agreement $8,919,000
Early Funding Reimbursement to date $5,109,823



• Approve a contract amendment with Brown and Caldwell, Contract No. 46000002697, for the Chino
Basin Program in the amount of $2,855,000, increasing the contract from $3,978,506 to a revised
not-to-exceed amount of $6,833,506; and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract amendment, subject to non-substantive
changes.

11

Recommendation

The contract amendment is consistent with IEUA's business goal of Water Reliability by 
implementing an integrated water resources management plan that provides the region with 

reliable and cost-effective water supply and promotes sustainable water use.



�

����������	
���
����������������������������������������������� � ����������������������

������ !���!"#�$"#����%"&# '��()****+),-.**(�/01���23���&!43��5 �6 !"�5 #73"3�! 8�$#436�� #5� ���9:;<=:;<>�<?:@;A�BC?A�DE�FGHI�GJH�IJKILIH�DJKM�KNDE�OOO�HGP�MQ�OOOOOOOOOOOOOR�STSSR�UP�GJH�UIKVIIJ�KNI�WJXGJH�;FYDLI�?KDXDKDIE�9ZIJ[PR�G�:\JD[DYGX�]GKIL�=DEKLD[KR�MLZGJD̂IH�GJH�I_DEKDJZ�DJ�KNI�̀M\JKP�MQ�aGJ�@ILJGLHDJM�\JHIL�GJH�UP�bDLK\I�MQ�KNI�XGVE�MQ�KNI�aKGKI�MQ�̀GXDQMLJDG�cNILIDJGQKIL�LIQILLIH�KM�GE�defghi�jkl�dhmnkopiq�jkl�@LMVJ�GJH�̀GXHVIXXR�VDKN�MQQD[IE�XM[GKIH�DJ�WLbDJIR�̀GXDQMLJDG�cNILIDJGQKIL�LIQILLIH�KM�jr�d̀MJE\XKGJKiqR�ENGXX�LIbDEI�KNI�̀MJKLG[K�GE�QMXXMVEs��� #t34#�4#��3���(u�4��5#��v�w� x�!�$�4# t3�#4u�!$$3�6�!�5! !6 !52���� #!$'��9HHDKDMJGX�̀MJE\XKGJK�EILbD[IE�GJH�LIEYMJEDUDXDKDIE�ENGXX�DJ[X\HI�GJH�UI�DJ�G[[MLHGJ[I�VDKN�yzkr{|}jk}~r��\MKIR�HGKIH�9\Z\EK��R�STSSR�#�������!R�VND[N�DE�GKKG[NIH�NILIKMR�LIQILIJ[IH�NILIDJR�GJH�FGHI�G�YGLK�NILIMQ��� #t34#�4#��3���)u��# "u�!$$3�6�!�5! !6 !52u���� #!$'��]DKN�KNI�I_I[\KDMJ�MQ�M̀JKLG[K�9FIJHFIJK�<\FUIL���TTTTS����TT�R�KNI�KILFDJGKDMJ�HGKI�MQ�KNDE�̀MJKLG[K�ENGXX�UI�I_KIJHIH�KM�=I[IFUIL���R�STS���\JXIEE�GZLIIH�KM�UP�UMKN�YGLKDIER�LIH\[IH�KM�VLDKDJZR�GJH�GFIJHIH�DJ�KNDE�̀MJKLG[K��� #t34#�4#��3���-u���"5#�4!�3��u�!$$3�6�!�5! !6 !52���� #!$'�WJ�[MFYIJEGKDMJ�QML�KNI�VML��LIYLIEIJKIH�UP�KNDE�̀ MJKLG[K�9FIJHFIJKR�9ZIJ[P�ENGXX�YGP�M̀JE\XKGJK�G����.��.#��##$�"!�3"%"�����)u���u�*)�QML�GXX�EILbD[IE�YLMbDHIH��>NDE�LIYLIEIJKE�GJ�DJ[LIGEI�MQ��+u���u***�DJ�G[[MLHGJ[I�VDKN�#�������!�VND[N�DE�GKKG[NIH�NILIKMR�LIQILIJ[IH�NILIDJR�GJH�FGHI�G�YGLK�NILIMQ����!77���2# �5 �t343��4��v��234����� !��� #"!3��%��2!�6#$��>NI�YGLKDIE�NILIKM�NGbI�F\K\GXXP�[MbIJGJKIH�GJH�GZLIIH�GE�YIL�KNI�GUMbI�GFIJHFIJK�DKIFR�GJH�DJ�HMDJZ�EM�NGbI�[G\EIH�KNDE�HM[\FIJK�KM�UI[MFI�DJ[MLYMLGKIH�DJKM�KNI�̀MJKLG[K�=M[\FIJKE����3�7!�$�#"53 #�%�373�3#4�!6#��8'� & �w��!�$��!7$w#77'��������������������������� ¡¢�£�¤ ¢�� ����OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO���OOOOOOOO�OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO���OOOOOOOO�aNDbG¥D�=IENF\�N� �c=GKI¦� :D[NGIX�§\[[DMR�§��;������������������������c=GKI¦�ÏJILGX�:GJGZIL� � � ©D[I�§LIEDHIJK�

ª«¬®̄°±�²±³́µ«¶́�·ª̧�¹º»¼½¼½¼¾½½¿¿¾ÀÁ¹Â¾»ÃºÄ¾ÃÅºÅ»»Áªª²ÅÆ

ÇÈÉÊÈËÌËË



������������	
�����������
����	����������������� �!��"�#�"$�$�� 		�$%



����������	
��
�����������������������������
�������
�������������� �!� �����"����� �!� �����

#$%�%&�'%&��(����#�('����%��%�(
�'���

�)�(������������*( �+�,
�*���,��- . ��������.�)�����/-��0�#��*
�
)������
�&�.�%����1�������(�)��#2������	��$
����������3������
�������
������� ��!��� �������$0�#����3����4
(���-��)�
��-56�7� ��5�
��*( �*���,���8�����
�����
��(��9#���&�
$��������#��#�%��
��
�&�%�������
�2�&�(�)������������3���3����4
(���-��)�
��:�4-;�
�&�
���%��
(�&�<��3��3����#��������������(�
$��(3�&�<��3��3���
����(�(�
=�3��&��( �>��3�(�$��((��������3����#3��#
��"�
(�$����2����&2�
�&�(�%%�����)�&�#�����
���������3���
�������
�>
���������((����
�&���#��%�����������(����������(�/(�%%���������%������
��%��)�
��%
���#�%
��(��<�����=����<
�&����$���)����#�������&�(����#������3�����
�&�.�%����1�����2�)��#2�:�.1;����&�����%���������3���4- �8�����
��<
(��(�
$��(3�&����$�����9�$���
�&�
&0�(�����#3
�)�(�
((�#�
��&�<��3���%��������)��3�(�#��%��9�%��)�
� ���.1�#���
#��&�4��<��
�&��
�&<����:4�;����%��%
���
�$������������%��%�(
�����%����&��#�������&�%�������
�2�&�(�)����%����:-56;�(����#�(������
����(��4-��������( ��3�(�<��=�<���&�$��
��3���,�&���&���������
�?(�#��������4-�#����
#���(��)����
����)����&(�
�
��
$��������������
�?(����9�$���
%%��
#3�
�&�<��=%�
� ��%�#���#�(����#�(���#��&���@��
(=���7�-��%
���6�)���
��-�
���A� ���:6-�;�&�
�#�&�>
����-�����#
�����"
#����2�:>-";�-56�
�&�-��0�#����#3��#
��6�B��������(�@��
(=���7�-��%
������2����6�
����:6�
���;�6�#2#��&�>
������%%�2�-56�@��
(=�!�7�-��%
�����0�#�����
�&�*��������)�>���(�-56��5��
���&������)�6�%����
�&����&�#��C2&��)����)�#�����(��)
����(�@��
(=���7�-��%
���-��������)�-�
��
�&�6�)��
���2����
��)2��3�(��������%��%�(
��%����&�(��3���#�%�����>��=��+��������.������
�&��#3�&���������3����B��(��&�(����#�( ���3�������<��)��
(=(�<����$��#��%����&���&����3�(�(#�%�����<��=��DED�FGHIJKL�MNGOPKL�QRHRSPQPHL�RHI�RIQTHTULNRLTGHE����&�#��)����
��%��0�#���
�
)������
�&�
&����(��
�����
#�������(����#��&��)��
(=�#���&��
������)����
��#������#
����(��(#�%���(#3�&����
�&�$�&)�����
#=��)�
�&������#��%��%
�
���� �4
(�(����������������������(������3��
((���&��<�����:��;�����3�-56�&��
���� ��DEV�FGHIJKL�KWRHSP�QRHRSPQPHL�RHI�XJRYTLZ�KGHLNGYE�*��������
(=�%��)��((�
�&������2��.1����%������
����%
#�(����(#�%���(#3�&�������$�&)�� �5�#������#3
�)�(�
�&�

[\]̂_̀ab�cbdef\ge�h[i�jklmnmnmonnppoqrjsoltkuotvkvllr[[cvw



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	������������������

������� �������!���� ���������� ���

�����
�����������!�����������������
�����
�����"����#	�������
������!��$���"������!�����������������	�����������������%&'�()*+,-.�/00.1*23�4*+�5)6738)93&���������"����
��"���������	�������
�:;�<�$��=�>�����
�������
�������
����$���������������
����!��$���$��>���������""�������������>������
���
��$��=�>����?��$�
�����>������
�@$��=�>�������A����������>�����������	�����������
����
	����$��>���A����������
���
�������
�����������������
���$��=�
�������������"�����������������""�����>��"��>����

�����B�:C<�$��=�>����$�����������
����$�����������$��=�>�����D>��"�����$�����!������
��!��!��$@�!�	����
��"��>���
��
�����	�A������������
���������
�����
���	�>��>�����������""�>��������������������
����!��$��
�	������������>������
��$��=�>����D>������
��$��=�>������>��	��������B��������
��$��=��"�����>��"�������>�����!��������������
E���!�
������
���>���$������	��������#	�����
����
�	����
���������
��"������A����������
�����
��D>��"��$�
��$��=�>�����
�������
��������������
�����	��
����!�����
���"��>���FGH�I������
��J;�K�L��=E�""������
��I�M��=�>���J;�K�G������������

�
���I�M��=�>���J��K��M�?���������@�>���
���$�������	������
��#	������I�M��=�>���JN�K����A�������>
������#	�����
���������
����
�I�M��=�>���J��K�O�����E$����P�P�������
����I�M��=�>���JQ�K�R��������
���
�����
������������
�I�M��=�>���JC�K��M�?��������
�����������
�����	������������
���I������
��J��K�F��"���FG��
����	����
@�!��!��$��I������
��JN�K�F��"���FG������
��@�����
������!��$�I������
��J��K�?�
���FG������
�����
�%&S�()*+,-.�960T1/1*46U�31.0�1*V03.124.1)*3�4.�WXYS&�P�
�	���������
����������	�!�������������>��B����
���
"�����	��	���������������������	
��������
����
"�����!������"������
��"�������������M�?���
��������	�!��������
���$��>�"�����	�!���!���"������
������

����P�
�	���������>
�����!�	����
��"��>��G�E�����������������>���
����������>
������
�����
���
�����
��"���
��������=�������>������	������#	���
�����������
�����>�����������������A������

�
���������������
����
�@�������������������

���"����>���������
�����
!���������
��Z���������������>
����������������
�����	
���>��G�E�������$�����������!��$����
���
���������!�������������B��������>��������������	�!����
��������>
�����
!���������
�:�����
��������<�$�������
�	��������������"��>��
�B���>�����"������
���!�����
���%&[�()*+,-.�960T1/1*46U�+0312*&�\	���"����P\����
����������
]��
����
��
��$��>����"���	��
���
��������
�����>��������:���������>��
���<��������
���������
�$����"�
���>���������"������
���������
���������������
�����������������
������������	���
��>����	������������
�E�����"��������
�����������
��"�������������
�����
���D>��������
���������
�$�������
�	�����!�����
���"��>��"��$�
�H�I�������;�̂ ��!��������
���������
����$�
���:	������_��>����<�����	�������������!�����
���
����
"�������A����"����������I������������������

àbcdefg�hgijkalj�m̀n�opqrsrsrtssuutvwoxtqypzty{p{qqẁ h̀{|



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	������������������

� �����!�������"����!����������!���

#$%�&'()*'(�&'+,(-.�/(-012-*3�4(562'(7(1.8$��������
���	 �������9��:��;��9���;<�������������=����>��:
����<�?	�����
���@�><A����:
����������
�	�����:������� ���
�	����B��:��:��C �����
�����	��
��D�9����:��<����E�F���:�	���:�����=������������9��B�
�������������"�������
� 	���@�;GA����"�����������:��>:���><�B���	��������H������=���� ��H���	
�����
������?	�����
����B�����?	������:����	������������������
��:����	����
���������
�������
�����������:���9�����:�� �����9�������I�������
���?	�����
����
�����9���
�����
��B�	��	�������� ����
����������
��	�������
���?	�����
���9����;<����"������>:���;<��������B��H���
�	��
���:��"����	��B��H�:������?	������9������������99��B�	���
9������"�����
���9��:���><����	��
����������
�����������:�����������I�����������
���:���><��
���
����:����;<J����������	��
�����	�� ��������"��� ������:������
�����;G��
���������#$K�LM*36*.(�NLOP�8Q8.(7�RLR�-+7)32*1-(�8.'*.(SQ$�G	���9����B��H���
�	�����	
����
�
JTG������
���"����T�T�������
���B��9��	���
��FU���
��V����J>T������"��������������T	���
���
����
��
�����	��������?	�����
���B�� ����9�
����>������
�����:
�������B�� ����"��B����
���"�	�������
�����J������������ ��
���B�� ����������������9�
���:���"���9��������
��@����������
�����:
����A���� ��������
��������:��"����	�������
����
������������������������:
����������
�	����9����:��T�T�������
����"�	����
��
���
�	�������
�����
��W�����:���E�F��;<���#$X�Y(M(3+)�+)212+1�+Z�)'+[*[3(�-+8.$�����������T���T��������������
��
��
���������������������
��9�����J���
���9���
���	����
���������
��
��;�"�������
��
��9���� � ���

	����������
���
�����
��
�
�����������#$\�&'()*'(�&Y4$���;��9���;<�B�� �����������9���������
�����H�:�������"��B��
�������
���T����
��������"���B�� �������������
���
�����������������������������
�����F�
���;<��������
������9�"�����
���9� ��:��:��;��9���
��F�
���;<�B�� �����"������>:���><�>��B�� ���
���������������
�����
��W���� ��:��:�����9���
��9�
���;<��	 ���������#$#]�&'()*'(�P̂ &_�'(1̀('21S8�*1̀�a%]b̀(S'((�M2̀(+$�F��B�
����������
��9��:���E�F�������
���������
�����������
�	���������
����
���
���c�J�������9�����	
��"������9��:��<����E�F��:����
�������������������	���	
��
���
9�����	��	����>:���
��
��9����:����������������9��������	����
����H�:����������
����
�d�����

����	 �����	�����
���������:����@�A�����:������� ����"������9�����:��B��H�
���E�F���������e$#�R+1̀6-.�)'+,(-.�7*1*S(7(1.�*1̀�*̀72128.'*.2+1$�T�
�	�����
�������=������
�����
���
������
�������"������"��������
�	��
�����H�������
����
����
��������	
������
������������:��	���
�� 	���������H�
���
���
"���������������
��G�����9����"���9��99�������9����:�����	�����B�"��@V�A���
�:��;<��	�����
���e$e�R+1̀6-.�-0*1S(�7*1*S(7(1.�*1̀�56*32.Q�-+1.'+3$���
��������H�����������
��
���9��������9�����
������������������������:��	������ 	�������;��	��
���:�
�����
��� ���
�����������"�����������������
�����
�����9����?	�������
������"��B��9������"��� �������������	 ����������������

fghijklm�nmopqgrp�sft�uvwxyxyxzyy{{z|}u~zw�v�z��v�ww}ffn��



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	������������������

������� �������!���� ���������� ���

"#$�%&'()*+�,--+.'/0�1'(�0+12-3&4(-5�*&&5(.'1+.&'#��6�7��8�99�:��8�;������������9����
��9������������<��=�>�;�	��8��8?�99�<��8�;���������������;��9��<�
�@��
����	����
�����	
�����������	����
��������
�����8�;�����������
����A����!��������	���������	
������9�������
�����
;�
����
�������;��	����9��;��9���������=���������!��B:�������8��
�����;�����
��
�>������	����
��8
�<
����
��
����
�����
����
���!����������������	��������
���������������	���9�������������
���
�B�����::C�����������<�����
��������<�����������������;����	�����;������	����
�<��;�����
��
�����8�;�������6�D��8�;����������
����������
��!��	���<��;�8������8�;���������
��������������
��
����!��<����������
9�������
������������!����������������
�������A�����
;�
����
�������
��
�����
���
?�����9�������������
���
�������
��������������!���9��99�������	�����;����=E>�!���	��F?;�	�������
����
���
��=F>������!���������;��B�����::C���6������
�����
��
������
���!���B�!��<������
���B�!��<��;����=E>����
��
������
���!����
������	�����
����	�����������
�9��������8���
����
�����
����9����;��6������
�����
��
������
���!���D������
������
���D������;�����9�����������
�����
��
���6��	���D�����
�������
����B�!��<������
���B�!��<�;����	������	�����
��������
������������
����
����	�������
��������
�����
��9����;��B�����B�������:������	���D�����
��6�G��9���GB�B�!��<������
���B�!��<������
����
�G��9���GB�6�H�
���GB������
�����
������
��������
���;��H�
���GB��"#I�J5-K15-�J.K-4.'-�L4./',-'+�MN�6�O�
�	��������
�����
��
������
���!����
������6�B�!��<�����
�������A�����
;�
����
����
�����
��
����
�����
������
��9����������8�;�������
����������	������;����=E>���
����	�������
�����
��
�����H������;����
��
����	����������
����	�����������
�9��������8���
����
�����
����6�O�
�	���	�������������;�������
��9����A���	����������
���;���;����=E>���
����	�������
�����
��
������������������;�<�����9�����;���������9�	���������
������������<��;��;�������
�����
��
������
���!����
�������
��	��������<��
��������������
�������
���������
�����<�
������������������;��
9�������
������!���<������
�	��������
�����
��P�����;��H�
���GB��6��!�	�����
���
�������������������������������
����H�
��
����������<�������

�����
�������	
�������6�B�!��<��;�����	���<��;��;�����8�;�������
�������������9�����������
�����
��
������
���!���6��������������
�����
��
��C���G�!����G��9��C��������	��
���;������
���!����
�������
��������������
���!�����
���������������
����
����������H�
��C����H�
��C��<������
�	��������
�����
��P�����;���GB�����

QRSTUVWX�YXZ[\R][�̂Q_�̀abcdcdceddffegh̀iebjakejlalbbhQQYlm



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	������������������

� �����!�������"����!����������!���

#$%�&'()*+,�-./0121(3.4�5*.6/�7(304818�9�����������������
�����	�����
�������:��;����������<����������
�� ������
��;����������������
�����
��
��������������	����:�<���������
���;�������������������
������������:��;����������<������	���������
��9��������������:��=��������
���;��:�
��
���:�����;���	�����
�������
��������
�����������
�����
��:��	�������������
������������>����������������?"��		������:�"�"�����	������
@��"�"���������
��"�"����������
������A���
���������������
����
����������:�
��=���B�
��=��<�� ���
�	��������
�����
��C�����;���DE��9�B�
��"���:������
��:��	�������������
���F	�����
����;�	�� �����:�������	��
��:�
�������
� ������
�:�
�������
���
���	���������
������
��������������#$G�&'()*+,�-',H'01(6�9����;���	������<�"��>I�A�������
����
���;�����:���������
��
������������
��������
��:���������	��������
:�����#$J�-./K3./�-./0121(3.4�L.3M1(68$��9�D����N������
��
��E�"��<��O�P�:���������
����EQ�	��������
�����
�������R 	����:���E�����QQ=����
�	��
����������;����	�"����E�����QQ=��:�<����S�����
���������;
�����������:���E�����QQ=��������9�B����;�����:�����������
�����
��
������������������������O�P� �����������������
���;��:��<�
��:���	���� ������
��
:�������
��"��� ���
�O�P�:������:�������S�������@�;����������
��;���	 ��������
T�����������������	 ������;����:�<����:���<����
����������������
��������@�������
�������;������S����C����
��	����������9���������������
����D��<�
������������	�������U��"�����<�
���:����;��:��<�
�����

�������;����T�V�W�����������
����  ��"�����
��V�X����	������:���V�=<�"��>I�A�I��R����������
����
��;�����>O�P� ����A�V�D�������
���
�>�:�
�����A�V��	���������
���"���������
�V��	���������
����;�
������
�V��	���������
����;�
����������
�V��	���������
������������
����
����������V��	���������
��Y�D�V�EQ������
��;����	������:���V�E�R����

�����
�������#$Z�L/[/0'K�\K1(1'(�']�-.'̂3̂0/�&'8,$�����������N���N��������������
��
��
���������_�����������
��:�����R���
���:���
���	����
���������
��
��D�"�������
��
��:���� � ���

	����������
���
�����
��
�
�����������#$̀�-./K3./�-La$�D�"����D��:���DE���
�	��
���;��:��<�
��������
�T��C��	��"��P	��������
����	����
��
��Nb��c"��"��<���	�������
��c S����"����b������:�D����
��

defghijk�lkmnoepn�qdr�stuvwvwvxwwyyxz{s|xu}t~x}�t�uu{ddl��



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	������������������

� �����!�������"����!����������!���

�
"���
��
���#�����
���#�
���������
���$%������
�����
��
���%%&��'�(��
���)	�������
��
�������$�����%%&��*
����������"���
�����	���+�����
�,����
��#���������������
��������
�����
���������
�������(�
����
���
������������������(�� ���
�	�����������
��������
���������������
����
����������'�
���,$��������
������-�"�����
���-� ��.��.��,��-���
��'�
���,$�(�� �����"������/012�3456745�89:;5�<=>�?57@9A9;9:B�C:DEB0������������&����FG��'���� �����+�	���H'���� �����+�	��I�-����.��$�����$�������%�����+	�������J�����
��������
���(��.���+�K	���	��-�$��������
���)	�����
�������L01�MNOEDP:�64NQ5P:�R7O7S5R5O:�7OE�7ER9O9@:47:9NO0�#�
�	�����
�������T�����
�������"������"��������
�	��
�����T�������
����
����
��������	
������
������������.��	���
�� 	���������T�
���
����
�.���
"���������������
���K�����-����"���-��--�������-����.�����	�����(�"��HU�I���
�.��������������������
�����"�������&�%��'���������+���
��+�	�����������������������
�����
���
�-����.��#K��%��V��(��T���
����������
����,����
�$������-����
J�����
��
����
�����
��%����L0/�MNOEDP:�PW7OS5�R7O7S5R5O:�7OE�XD7;9:B�PNO:4N;0���
��������T�����������
��
���-��������-�����
������������������������.��	����� 	������,��	��
���.�
�����
��� ���
�����������"�����������������
�����
�����-����)	�������
������"��(���-������"��� �������������	 ���������������L0L�MNOEDP:�R55:9OS@�7OE�YN4Z@WN6@0���������-����
��-����������.��-��(�
�������
����
��(��T�.�����.���������

���-����(��H�I�.�	������.[�\�]��T̂�--������
���\�+�.��	����"�����
��(��T�.���\����������.��H_I������
���(��.����T�.�����̀����������(
��������J�����������
�	��
�����
����������	
�(����������
����
�	��
���H������%����a���I�\��
�����(�-��������
���"�	����
�(��T�.���\�,��-������
�����������"��(������
��\��������(��H�I������
���(��.�,,%��
��b��	
�(������� ��
����
�����
���
����������
����������Hb���I�	
���L0c�MNOEDP:�dBE4NS5N;NS9P�>Oe5@:9S7:9NO@�\��f���������K���
���g������������
����
������
��������-�
���.���f�������������
����������H����������
���
�������
�����.������
J�����
�����
���������.���-�����-��.�� ���
��I��g����
��-��	�����-�	��H�I�����
�����f��������� ���
��������
��g�#�
�	���	�����-�	��H�I�-��
��.�������������� ���.���H���	���(�� ��	�����������������
J�����
�����
���I�g��������������
���"����
���������
�� ������T����-����f�������������
����������g�%��
��������
��������
����
���"�	�������	����

hijklmno�poqrsitr�uhv�wxyz{z{z|{{}}|~�w�|y�x�|��x�yy�hhp��



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	������������������

� �����!�������"����!����������!���

#�$���%�������
"���������
�&�'�
�	����(�)�������*�+�����
�)	�"����&�,-�����%���
���
������%�� �	����./��/0/�����	�"����
����%��	�%��%��������
�������
��+�����
1�����
�-��+�����&�������
�����
�����������
��+��(�)�������*�+�����
�)	�"���&�*�+�
���
�����������
�	�����
�������+�����%���2��������� ���
���&���������
������%�/�+/-���������
����
��
�3������++�����
������
��+���+��������	������
����
�	�����
��%������������
���%�� ����
�	����� ����%������&�45678�95::;7<�=75>?@A;BA�CDA�B5E6DB67F�G@�5H<�67DI�65�B5EFHB6�6?;A�C5<JK�L77�M66DB?I7E6�N�O5<�6?7;<�:7667<�><5>5AD:�C?;B?�;EB:HF7A�DFF;6;5ED:�F76D;:�DEF�GDBJP<5HEF�O5<�6?7�><5>5A7F�P75>?@A;BD:�;EQ7A6;PD6;5EK��RST�UVWVXYZ�[\]�̂VXX�_̀abXbcbVd�ebcbfg�echij�#�'�������
���"�	����(����k��
+�������
�&�*�"��-��"��� ��(����k��
+�������
�&����	��(����*�l	��������)��m�%������k����
��(����)����&���������)���������%���'�����)�����
��&��
�������
�/,����,��
���+���n�������"��������	����
���
��n�����o	�����&�(������
����������
���
��*��	������*�l	�����
���+���p�-�n����#�(�"����n��)���
��'��������&�������q-
���%���&�)����)����k�'�
���	��� �����&�)��������
�(����
���� ������
�(n*�n�����n��)��
������k�)�
����
��*no'r�q�����p���*s/���./��00�t+�����������-��������%������
����	
�-����� ���
�u�&���������-��%�
��%��)�������v����-��m��
"���������
���	��������&�$������k�w�����������t�
1�����
�����
���u��&�n�����o	�����&�����
����n�������	
��
���
���+���
���-��%�q�%����
1�����
�n���&�q�%�������(������
��� ��)��m�%������#��"�	����������
����n��)�����&�)�������
��+������
��
��t-��%���������������+��
���������
����
�-��%��
��-
��������
+����������"��� ����u���
���������l	������
�-��m�t+���������	����
����������
�������	��
�����������������u�-�	�� ����������� ����%�����&���������$�)/ ����������������
��+��)����������
��'��������&��"�	����������
����n��)����� ������
��%������ ��%���-������
�����������x�(�"�����"�	����
������2�

yz{|}~��������z����y���������������������������������yy���



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	������������������

� �����!�������"����!����������!���

#������
�$�
%�
���
�����
��&���'�����&�������
(�����
�)�������� ������
��'��)������
������������
��������
�����"�	����
��&�)���������*�+��"��� ��)���
�	������"�
�����	��
���'�������%���'���"�	����
��
����
%�
����������&����'���
(�����
��
����
�����
��)��������*�,��%�'����������
�����$�"��)�������
����$��	���-	
����.��%�/�/0�1����
��&��.�����
(�����
�2��,�����*����
��&������
����,�����&��������.�����
(�����
�2���
�������������3��������
�����
��)��1�4�����
�������	
�)�����������	
��)��'�2����5����-6789:�;<<�=>7?6@A;89>�;6@�;B?CD9>�E7@9<C6=�C6�F?GG7>8�7D�8H9�C6I9J8C76�A9<<�@9K9<7GE968�FH;<<�L9�@769�LM�78H9>FN��1���������+��&��2��,���
��.��'
����������
�	��1�O�
�����2��,���
��.��'
����������
�	���1�+�"����2��%��
�&����'�������.�����
(�����
�2���*����
��&��.�����
(�����
�2��,�����*������������
����
������
��������&�
���'��������
(�����
�)�������
���
���P�������������
����������*�$��	������������
����
�*�4�
���	����
��������-�
(�����
�)���
��������
�����
��)��-�00�*�.����
�������
�
���-�Q	�&������������'�
����	��������0�RST�UVWXYVW�UVZ[VY\\Y]̂_�̀\XaW\Wb]Y]̂Zb�UaYb�cZV�]dW�efU�gWaa�hW]iZVjS�+�"������&�
�������������
�����
��,��	��	����
����������$�����������
�������������4k���
(�����
��
����
�����
��2����1�������������&�
�������
������
��'����&����'��4k��)��������
�
���'������������'��%���������
���
����&�����	
�� �����&����	�����&	����"�����1�+�"����	������� ����
����'��	��&����'��4k��)��������
�
���'�)�
����(������%���
��������
����1���������'��������
���������������%��������������
�����������
���������
�����%�����
��&����&����'��4k��)����RSl�mWnWaZX�UVWâ\b̂YVo�mWp̂[b�cZV�̀bqW_]̂Zb�Ybr�sZb̂]ZV̂b[�gWaap�1��������� ������&������
�&����
(�����
�)���-���
��&�������������������
t����
����
�0�1��������� ������&������
�&�����
�����
��)���1���������������
������������
�����������&����
(�����
�)���RSu�mWnWaZX�vX̂b̂Zb�Zc�UVZwYwaW�eZp]S�����������4���4��������������
��
��
���������/�����������
��&�����x���
���&���
���	����
���������
��
��+�"�������
��
��&���� � ���

	����������
���
�����
��
�
����������RSy�UVWXYVW�UmzS�+�"����+��&���+$���
�	��
���'��&��)�
��������
�{��P��	��"��,	��������
����	����
��
��4k��|"��"��)���	�������
��| (����"����k������&�+����
�&���4k��)�����
��������
�����
���
�&���)�����
���������������
����
��

}~������������~����}���������������������������������}}���



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	������������������

� �����!�������"����!����������!���

��������#�
���$%��������
������&�"�����
���&� ��'��'��$��&���
��#�
���$%�(�� �����"�������)*+�,-./012�34-5612�78.89676.2�8./�8/7:.:;2482:-.*�<�
�	�����
��������
�����=��"������"��������
�	��
�����>�������
����
����
��������	
������
������������'��=	���
�� 	���������>�
���
����
�'���
"���������������
���?�����&����"���&��&&���������
�
��@�A���
�'���'��	��������������'����������
����
��
��%��	������B����=����������,-./012�1C8.96�78.89676.2�8./�D08E:2F�1-.24-E*���
��������>�����������
��
���&��������&�����
������������������������'��	������ 	������$��	��
���'�
�����
��� ���
�����������"�����������������
�����
�����&����G	�������
������"��(���&������"��� �������������	 ������������������H�,-./012�7662:.9;�8./�I-4J;C-3;*���������&����
��&���������	�������K�@LA������
��������	��������� ��(�����
����(�� ������������
����"��(���(��'���������&&�������������'������
���#��(�
�����'������
������M����������'�����������	�����������
����
	����(��'���M����������
���
�������
�����������������
���(��>�
������N�O��>=�&&������
���<�
�	���>��>=�&&������
��(��'���������&&��
�����>�'����������������������������"��(�(��>��
�&�����"�����
���&��'����������
����
��
�����	�������������������
��&���
������	�����������
���
�����	����������������>���
����������������
���&�����P��
&�����	��	���&���"����
��(��'����	���������
������N�%��	�������
�����>�'����������
����<�
�	���	�����&�	��@�A������
���(��'�BQ%<?=$$Q��BQ%<?=R��	
�(������� ��
����
�����
���
����������
����������@R���A��%QS<?��
����'������>�'������������������������������	������M�������������
���
�����	������������
����
���K��������
����N�$��&��P����"��(������
���<�
�	��������
��(��'���������&&��
����'������>�'����������������������������"��(������
����
�������
����
��'��$��&��P��������T463846�3647:22:.9�3E8.*�����������������
����
�&�����P��
&�����	��	�����
�	��
���K���
���	������&����<�����&�%������%����Q�#��
����

����
M�����
U��
�����
��(�������������
����
��'���
�	������� 	����	�������&���M������G	�������������&���������
�����
���
�	��
�����
�����
�������
&�������
��
������
�U��'��	����G	�����
���&������������
�����V�T463846�4690E82-4F�;248269F*������������	���������������&�����P=��������
&�����	��	�����
�	��
���K���
���	������@������<�����&�%������%����Q�#��
���
M�����
U��
�����
��(��A��B��������(�� ����&�
����'��	�'�	���'�����>��	�����
��
��&��(�
�������
���(��'����>�'�������
�����	���������
������B��������(����������P��������������
�����	������
�����
�����	�����	�����(
���'�����
��W�$�B��������������
����
��P'�����������(�����������������	��������G	�����
����
���K��������
��&����
M�����
U��
�����
��(���������
�����
���
�	��
�������
���
����	�����	��������"���������'���
�����
�����
����
���������
����
�	������	����&���������
���(��'��'��BQ%<?=R����	
���(������ ����&�������
��'�������������

XYZ[\]̂_�̀_abcYdb�eXf�ghijkjkjlkkmmlnogpliqhrlqshsiioXX̀ st



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	�������������������

� �����!�������"����!����������!���

��#�$%&'(%&�)&*+,-*(.�/&01%(,230�4)/56���������7��8��9���:������������� ��:��:����������
����
��
�����	���������������8����:����

���;<����9��
8�����	��	����=	 ����7��8��9����������8�����"��>��;����
��������"���>�� �������������
���
�����������������������������
���?�
��9���������
������8�"�����
���8� ��:��:��7��8���
��?�
��9��>�� �����"��������
������������"�����������
���������������
�����@���:���>�	�� ���������� 	���������
���	�:�����������������8��>�
��������
�����
��
�A�����������
��8��������
�����"������9:�����
������������@���:��������:������
��8����8����	��9���������
�	��������	��������� ��>��?��� 	�������

�
�����	�:����������
��	���BCD�E�������8����:���
������������"������������"������9:���������
��������������� ���@��>
��:�� �����"��������������>:�
��	�:����"�����>�	�� ����
�������
��8��>�
��������
�����
��
�A�����������
��8��������
��>��@������ ��9:��� F����"���8����:���>��@��
�	����������
��8�����:�����������8����:���G	�8����
������"�	�����:������
����8�����������
����88��	���������G	�8���G	���������������
��	������:������:�������
��������
���8��:���	��8����>�����>��:��:���
F�����
��G	�8����CD�������8������"�������������H�������I�J�������K�;�
�	������F������
�����
���
������
��������
�K�;�
�	����:�
�����
�����
���
��G	�������
����K�;�
�	��������
���K�7�"��������������8�������:�������������
������������8��������
���
���
��������
�B=��E��L�����:����	88����
�������������>�	�� ��������"��� ��8������
���	����
��8��:��������
F�����
�>���
�A����
���H���������>�����
�	��������������8��:����
��
������:�������	�"���>��@�B ����:���E��K��� ��������������
����
��
�������
��������K�M���:�������
�������
���������� ��>��@��
�8����:��������
F�����
�>�������
��>�� ����"�������
�9��@�N���>:��:��
�	���������������������8�>��@��:���>�� ��	����������"�������"���8��88��������������������9:��CD��������8����"�������������H�������I�#J�����K��������� ����
�����	��
���8���������
F�����
�>����
���	����
��
�������
��K����"�����
F�����
�>����
���	����
����"�����
���
�������
���"�����:��K������������8���
��8�
��>����
���	����
����"�����
���
�������
����������9:������������ 	�����8����:���>��@�B
����
�	��
���:��O�
������������"����PE����IN���J������9� �������"��������	�������8��	������Q�������
�
��;<���7C� 	������
����G	����8������
���
������:���	�������:���88������G	�����������"����:���������
�����"������������
�����:����:�������������D���
�� 	��������"�����������
��������������
�����
�����"�����8��� 	�����
���	��������D	�������>����"��>��:�� 	���������	����
�:���
����
������:����������F������
�����������
��������� ���8��������
��8	
���

RSTUVWXY�ZY[\]Ŝ\�_R̀�abcdededfeeggfhiajfckblfkmbmcciRRZmn



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	�������������������

� �����!�������"����!����������!���

������#	���������	�������$����#	���������"�����������������"���%��%%����&�'�(��
��%����������"������
��$�������$���)� ������ *+,-.�/0�123�14567+86�+59�3:;�<.7=>8.?�2@9A.6�<@BB+7C�DEFG� HIFJ�KLLMINOPEJQ�HRS�STU�VIWJMEVJ�XEYEWVQ�ZEF�I[�\]̂_]̂^̀� abcd_eceee�fQFF�IWghIOWh�VIIMiOWEJOIW�EWi�VIWVQLJ�iQjQYILPQWJ�ZJkMIlhk�m]ne]̂ǹ� Zâ\dceeè�fQFF�KlhPQWJQi�HRS�FJlio� Zabeeceeè�fQFF�USp�KqSr�STU�ZDEFG�sIt�b̀� Zabcnuuceeè�fQFF�UOEYJI�MQVoVYQi�vEJQM�FlLLYo�STU�ZDEFG�sIt�̂̀� Zadûceeè�fQFF�OWwQVJOIW�vQYYF�STUc�FOJOWh�MQLIMJ�EWi�koiMIhQIYIhOV�OWjQFJOhEJOIWF�ZDEFG�sIt�ǹ� Zabĉ\uceeè�fQFF�LQMPOJJOWh�LYEW�EWi�MQhlYEJIMo�FJMEJQho�ZDEFG�sIt�p̀� Zab\dceeè�� �HRS�STU�VIWJMEVJ�XEYEWVQ�ZWQhEJOjQ�OWiOVEJQF�EPQWiPQWJ�MQxlQFJ̀� Zâĉpeceeè����	��
���	�$��������
��
��
�����������������&y)�(� ��z	
���{���������$����#	���������"������
�	�����
��$�������������������
� �����������|��$�
��$��%��|�
�������
�}�~�������������}��������������&�����
�$�(�~���������������|������	�������}��������������&�����
�$�(�~��
������
��
����
�����
��|�������
����������
�����}��������������&�����
�$�(�~���������
����
��
�����	��������������}�����$����������&����
�$�(���������%��|�������������
�����
��%��$�������
���	����
��
	������"�������������
���������������$���������������
����������������|��$��
��#	�����
������������	����	����������������������������
���|�����
 �������� ������������������������
����� �������$��
�&�(�

������������ ¡�¢ �£�¤�¥¦§̈ ©̈©̈ª©©««ª¬¥®ª§̄¦°ª̄±¦±§§���±²



��������	���
���������������������������	������ �!�"#��$%�
"��&'&$�"(�)�*���� �+  �",-�./0�123245446 
"�7��, 
"�7��, 8�9&:$ ;�<;� 
"���99 ��9# 	�$&�" 
"�7��, 	,�  )��% 	,�  ��9, !�"% 	=�,�,�� 	=�,�,�� 8&"��, 	=�,�,�� 	=�,�,�� ;�<;� ��9# 	�$&�" 	�$&�" 	,�  	,�  ;�<;� ��8 +$:"> 	,�  	,�  	=�,�,�� 	=�,�,�� 8&"��, 	=�,�,�� ��,���$�:�" �%'&$ �$�:�" )��% )��% )��% +$:&$��"+$:&$��"+$:&$��"8�9&:$�"8�9&:$�"+9,&'�,�" 
"���99 ��="9 )���" +?��$9�9 	=�9 ��9, �$�:�"�(%"��:�+$:&$��"+$:&$��"+$:&$��"+$:&$��"8�9&:$�" 	=���",�����:&9,�����:&9, ��="9 )���" +?��$9�9 ��9, ��9,�@AB��9# CDEE��FG.HI45055 HA4J055 HI55055 HI45055 H4KJ055 HA1J055 H4JJ055 HA1J055 HAJ5055 HA15055 HAJ5055 H4L5055 HA3J055 HI45055 H415055 H4M5055 H4I5055 HAMJ055 HAMJ055 H415055 HA15055 HAJJ055 HAJJ055 HAJJ055N�O�PQRSTQR�UPV�WXPY�PZU [\] N\̂ _̀` N̂V V]̀ \̀V \aV bN\ Nc]̀\ [N] VV̂ N[̀ b̀ \c]â Nc̀b̂c_̀] ]̀c_[[ a\c[]] Nc_b[cNa[ ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] Nc_bbc]]]A0A�d��efghiG�jkel.iG�mFfFn.m.fG�Ffg�FgmDfDoGkFGDef AK4 A33 IIM LKp335 Jp555 5 13p335 5 5 5 13p335A04�d��efghiG�iqFfn.�mFfFn.m.fG�Ffg�rhFEDGs�iefGkeE 31 43 A45 15 4L4 LLpAM5 5 LLpAM5 5 5 5 LLpAM5A0I�d��efghiG�m..GDfno�Ffg�tekuoqejo A45 5 A54 5 K3 A13 A54 AA5 AK4 A1 31 5 5 KL5 4AMpIL5 A5pJMJ ApJ55 441p3IJ 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 441pJA5A03�d��efghiG�jk.EDmDfFks�oDG.�Df/.oGDnFGDefo�FG���d3 3 1 AM 1 AM J4 AAp515 L5p555 1Ap515 5 5 5 13pJ15A0J�d��efghiG�jk.EDmDfFks�g.oDnf AA4 5 A35 5 AM1 4I4 II4 314 3A5 345 I45 5 5 4pMAM J4Kp4J5 5 5 J4Kp4J5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 J4Kp4J5A0M�d��k.jFk.�jkel.iG�G.iqfDiFE�k.rhDk.m.fGo 43 35 35 15 15 A55 435 445 143 ALIpL15 5 ALIpL15 5 5 5 ALIpL15A0L�d��/FEhFG.���vwdosoG.m�����iemjEDFfi.�oGkFG.ns 43 1 1 35 I4 31 15 KM 43 43 I13 LKpL45 Jp555 13pL45 5 5 5 13pKL5A01�d��./.Eej�ejDfDef�ex�jkeyFyE.�ieoG 1 3 1 AM AJ4 A11 J5pI45 5 J5pI45 5 5 5 J5pI45A0K�d��k.jFk.���� 43 AM 1 45 JM 11 43 K4 I41 MAp335 3p4K5 5 MJpLI5 5 5 5 MJpLI5A0A5�d��k.jFk.�wz�{�k.fg.kDfno2/Dg.e 3 3 1 3 3 3 31 I4 A51 AKpLM5 J55 5 45p4M5 5 5 5 45p4M5�̀O�PQRSTQR�U|T}~��UX�S��S��~T~|���T���S|SR}|�R�PZU \̀ N\ a\ a\ ] ] _̀\ \̂ _̀ ]̂ _̀ Ǹ^ ] ]̂\ ]̀]c̀̂ ] c̀\̂V \[c]]] \̀acb\V [̀\ ] ] ] ] \[̂ \V N_̀ V̀^ ] ] Nc[_̂ b̀̂c[N] ac]]] _][c[N] [b̀c]]]40A�d��efghiG�jkel.iG�mFfFn.m.fG�Ffg�FgmDfDoGkFGDef 1 1 AM IpJM5 5 IpJM5 4M IM M4 A3p4M5 A3p4M5 A1pJII404�d��efghiG�iqFfn.�mFfFn.m.fG�Ffg�rhFEDGs�iefGkeE 1 1 43 35 15 4Ap335 5 4Ap335 AM AM 43 JM A3p315 A3p315 IMpM3340I�d��efghiG�m..GDfno�Ffg�oGFu.qeEg.k�ieekgDfFGDef 44 5 I4 5 5 5 I4 5 5 5 5 5 5 1M 43p155 4pM13 5 4Lp313 14 5 5 5 5 K5 5 5 5 5 5 AL4 3Ap5K5 Lp555 31p5K5 LLpKLK403�d��k.jFk.�jDj.EDf.�FEDnfm.fG��� 1 1 4pJM5 5 4pJM5 I4 A35 LM 431 3JpA45 3JpA45 3KpKIM40J�d��efghiG�jk.EDmDfFks�ohkn.�FfFEsoDo 4 3 1 1 44 Mp335 5 Mp335 A4 43 35 A35 4AM 35pL55 35pL55 3KpALJ40M�d��efghiG�jeGqeEDfn 4 3 1 3 A1 3p315 MJp555 MKp315 AM AM 4pM35 4pM35 LJpJ5440L�d��k.jFk.�jk.EDmDfFks�gkFtDfno 1 5 1 43 5 5 KM 35 5 15 I4 5 5 411 MIpL45 5 5 MIpL45 4M 5 5 5 5 A43 5 AI4 5 5 5 414 J4pJ35 5 J4pJ35 AA1p11L401�d��./.Eej�ejDfDef�ex�jkeyFyE.�ieoG 3 3 1 AA4 A41 IJp415 5 IJp415 4 43 4M 3pM55 3pM55 35pAA540K�d��k.jFk.���� 3 AM 31 43 43 AAM 4MpIM5 5 4MpIM5 35 A35 J4 4I4 3IpKM5 3IpKM5 L4pJA140A5�d��k.jFk.��DGE.�����x.FoDyDEDGs�oGhgs 3 1 3 3 3 3 AM 33 AApM35 5 AApM35 45 31 AM5 441 IKpA45 IKpA45 J4pLAM_�O�PQRSTQR�|��R�~|������|~�Q|����R}}���|~|����~����T���PZU NN] `̂ N_̀ \V ] ] _̀] [̀ ] [\ ] NǸ ] âV _̀]c_̀] Vc]NV V̀ c̀]]] \[\c__V N]_ V\b abV Ǹ] V] ] ] V̂ ] N̂̀ N̂] c̀[\\ [\ac_̀] [c\]] [àcb̀] Nc̀abc]]]I0A�d��efghiG�jkel.iG�mFfFn.m.fG�Ffg�FgmDfDoGkFGDef 1 1 AM IpJM5 5 IpJM5 1 35 45 M1 A1pKM5 455 AKpAM5 4IpML1I04�d��efghiG�iqFfn.�mFfFn.m.fG�Ffg�rhFEDGs�iefGkeE 3 3 43 31 15 4ApL55 5 4ApL55 1 1 AM 3p155 3p155 4MpL35I0I�d��efghiG�m..GDfno�Ffg�tekuoqejo 35 5 M3 5 5 5 M5 5 5 5 5 5 5 AM3 3LpI55 Ip5A3 AIp555 MIpIA3 31 AAM AAM 5 5 5 5 5 5 33 5 I43 13p145 K55 1JpL45 AJIpKL5I03�d��efghiG�qsgken.eEenDi�Df/.oGDnFGDefo 43 AM 41 I4 5 5 15 5 5 5 5 5 5 A15 31pL45 Ap555 I4Jp555 IL3pL45 5 A5L 4IM 5 5 5 5 5 5 435 A15 LMI AJMp345 ApM55 AJ1p545 JJMp1KAI0J�d��./.Eej��v��t.EE�xFiDEDGD.o�oDGDfn�oGhgs AM 5 AM 5 5 5 33 5 5 5 5 5 5 LM 4ApA35 5 AJp555 IMpA35 AJ AA3 433 1 5 5 5 1 5 343 5 1AI AMKpAM5 ApL55 AL5p1M5 4AMp4KII0M�d��k.jFk.�jkenkFmmFGDi�DmjE.m.fGFGDef�jEFf�xek�t.EEo 3 3 1 AM 3pJ45 35p555 33pJ45 M 43 43 J3 A3p115 A55 A3pK15 M4p43KI0L�d��./.Eej�jk.dg.oDnf�xek�Dfl.iGDef�Ffg�mefDGekDfn�t.EEo M 5 A4 5 5 5 M3 J4 5 JM 5 5 5 AK5 3ApJ35 5 44p555 MIpJ35 1 I3 K5 31 5 5 5 35 5 M3 5 413 MIpM35 M55 M3p435 AI4p5K4I01�d��./.Eej�ejDfDef�ex�jkeyFyE.�ieoG 3 3 1 1 AA4 AIM ILpI45 5 ILpI45 3 M 43 43 AM L3 ALpIM5 455 ALpJM5 JJpLJ1I0K�d��k.jFk.���� 3 3 1 AM 3pJ45 Lp555 AApJ45 M 45 35 35 43 35 AL5 ILp415 I55 ILpJ15 JApI4KV�O�PQRSTQR�SRQ�|~~|���S}T��T���QR��}T~�Q���~QT~R�� \̀ VV [\ _̀ ] \V ] ] ] ] ] ] ] [̀̂ \Vc̀̀ ] NcVb\ b]c]]] N[[caN\ N\ _̀ ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] V̂ NVc]̂] ] NVc]̂] Na[c]]]30A�d��efghiG�jkel.iG�mFfFn.m.fG�Ffg�FgmDfDoGkFGDef A1 IM J3 A5p4M5 5 A5p4M5 3 3 1 4p355 4p355 A4pL15304�d��efghiG�iqFfn.�mFfFn.m.fG�Ffg�rhFEDGs�iefGkeE 1 1 I4 31 AIp155 5 AIp155 5 5 5 AIp15530I�d��efghiG�m..GDfno�Ffg�tekuoqejo 43 43 43 L4 AKpI45 Ap3KM AJp555 IJp1AM 5 5 5 IMpJMM303�d��k.jFk.�j.kmDGGDfn�jEFf 3 A4 A4 41 LpA55 IJp555 34pA55 3 1 A4 IpJ45 IpJ45 3LpJ3M30J�d��k.jFk.�k.nhEFGeks�oGkFG.ns 3 A4 A4 41 LpA55 4Jp555 I4pA55 3 A4 AM 3pM35 3pM35 I1p44430M�d��k.jFk.�G.iqfDiFE�m.mekFfghm 3 1 AM 41 MpM35 AJp555 4ApM35 3 1 A4 IpJ45 IpJ45 4Mp51M����) LK3 4JM J1M IJM 354 M11 Ap4I5 Ap5IM Ap5J1 M3M 315 IK4 K4 1p5AM HApLKIpA35 H41pJ3K HMJIpJ55 H4p3LJpA1K ILJ J5A LK3 A45 35 MJ1 M3 A15 341 1A4 A15 3pAJ4 H1LKpKA5 HA4pM55 H1K4pJA5 ������������~R���N�����}��R����������}~T�~��TQ��S����[�]]��

�"��$��$%����%���� !	�
� ¡¢£¤¥¦�§¦̈©ª «©�¬��®̄°±²±²±³²²́ ³́µ¶®·³°̧ ¹̄³̧º̄º°°¶��§º»



���

�������	
�������	������������������������������������� !"#$%&����'()*+,���-./0�12�31450456��765�12�5-./06��765�12�2789:06��;;04<7306���=03957>0�69??-:@��� AB��040:-/�:0C97:0?0456��-B�D-3E8:194<��.B��.F0357>06��3B��-59?�-4<�6750�3145:1/��<B��01503G473-/�<-5-��� HB�D-676�12�<06784�-B��/-45�/13-5714��.B��4508:-5714�I75G�����?-650:�;/-44748��3B��/-45�3-;-375@�-4<�;G-6748�;/-4��<B��-50:�619:306�J7B0BK���L�K�6@650?K��7-/51M��7B��19:30�?14751:748��77B��:0L5:0-5?045�J7B0BK�<03G/1:74-5714M�777B�D/04<748�-4<�<7>0:6714�0B��-50:�C9-/75@��7B��42/9045�3G-:-350:765736�77B��9:7270<�I-50:�C9-/75@�81-/6�2B��:0-5?045�;:13066��7B��089/-51:@�:0C97:0?0456�77B��:13066�1>0:>70I�8B���N��6@650?�G@<:-9/736�-4<�;9:7270<�I-50:�314>0@-430��GB��0<94<-43@�:0C97:0?0456��� OB��:13066�<06784�3:750:7-�-B��42/9045�0C9-/7P-5714�-4<�;9?;748��.B�����3B����<B�NQR�����0B��165�5:0-5?045�65-.7/7P-5714��2B�SG0?73-/�651:-80�-4<�200<�6@650?6��

TUUTVWXYZU�T[\]̂_̀ab�cbdef\ge�h[i�jklmnmnmonnppoqrjsoltkuotvkvllr[[cvw



���

�������	�
����
�������
������������������
�	����������
������������
����
�������������������
�	�������
�������������
���
�� �����������
������ �����������������
���
�����!��
�������
����������"��#�����$������!��
���������"��#������$�������%�����������	��
�����&��������������������
��
��'���
����
���
�� (���������
���������
����)��"�����
�������
���������
����*��!����������
���������
����+������
����
��������
���������
����,��'���������
��������
���������
����-.����
��������
���������
����--��/0���
���������
�����-1��/���
�
�������������������	�������
�����������������������!��
���
�� -2��"��
���3�����
���������
��������������-��4���
���

�����������������1��5���������
3��2��6
�
������
�����������$�7�����"��#����
����
������(������
���	����������)��%�����������	��
�*��"��#����
�����+��&��������������,������
��������������
��������-.���8���9�����:#�	
����;�7������--������������
��������������7������-1��$��	

����;�7������-2����
����������
�	�������7���
��������-���"��#��
��
�����7�-�

<=>?@ABC�DCEFG=HF�I<J�KLMNONONPOOQQPRSKTPMULVPUWLWMMS<<DWX



���

�������	�
���
���������������	�
���
�����������������
��������
����������������������
���������������������������
���������������������������
������� !"#$$����������%�����&'$����((
��������%����%)*(��%�����&'$�������
���(���+����
�*������'&,���&�-�.�����/"#	�-���0.*0%��1���'&,���#	���%�������
���������'&,���!2�-������+����0.*0%������'&,���!2���%�������
���������'&,���34���%�������
���������'&,����
�.���5���
����+����0.*0%�(�������
�����������%�����&�3��%)%��*�$�$���*0�����������.������67#8����
�9����7��:������!�;.�
�*���%�67#8������
*���������������!��.����
)���
����)�67#8���

<=>?@ABC�DCEFG=HF�I<J�KLMNONONPOOQQPRSKTPMULVPUWLWMMS<<DWX



���������	��
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��!����"�����# ��$�����������������������%&''()*�+)&,-./(0/1�22%�345�6�6&78-�2&&,�68),-)9:('')1�;<�=>?5@���� �A9'B9C�DE,(*)�F8('(8.�G78-&*(8.�4>??�H)*E&/B�G:)�IB90-&�%70BE&9JB1�%G�4@=K5� �� �

LMMLNOPQRM�STUVWXYZ[�\[]̂_Ù �̂aTb�cdefgfgfhggiihjkclhemdnhmodoeekTT\op



����������	
�������������������
������
������������������
������������������

� !"#$�"%" &$!' (�" )*+$�!* �,-�./*.&*"�/01)$� 2*$!�1�$3/"2�'/$1#4.*" )�./�5*"/.�1�$1$. )�,,6,78���9:;� -/."�*12*$!�$+�2#/�1�$3/"2�� �����������������
��<<��=�������>����������?�����������@��?�A������B��������	��������=@AB�>������������������������������C�?���������
����C�
���D����������
�������	
�����������D����E�F����G��
��C��H����G����������?�D����	G��	�D�
���������
�
������D���H���������	�
����?��H�H�����H�������������E���9:9� 1%�1$./�I�$J3/"2*5/.��F��������
�������
���?���������
�����D�K�
����	
������=F�������>������D�����=L��	���M>E�F������������G��
��C���D����������
���������������@AB�����
N	������H����������
���D��
����?����D���
��������������	G��	�D�
��A�������?���D����?���D����H���������	�
��E�F���������
�?����H����G��	��?���������O�������	G��	�D�
���D���������	
�����H�����D������������������	G��	�D�
���������
�?��������?�������?���D��P����������
�D����������	
�����D�	�����D��
�	���Q����������������	
�	����������������
���������?	
����
���
�����D�����������?��	
������H�����G���������D�	�
����������
�����D�D�C���G����N	�D������������?�K�
�C����=��K>�H������
�����E��R��H������������������������
��D��������O������H����
��������������������O�������������������?������
�������������H�����D��������?���
�����������������
���
�����D���G������	?�����?����D������������?��	G��	�D�
�����	
�	��E��F�����������������D����������?��������?����������
����=�>������	����?���L��	���M��
� +STUVW�9X���WTSYZ[\�[Z]�\Ŷ[\�_[̀�[Z]�̀VỲYaW]�\SZWa�

bcdefghi�jiklmcnl�obp�qrstututvuuwwvxyqzvs{r|v{}r}ssybbj}~



����������	
�������������������
������
������������������
������������������

���� !"#$%&'(# !�) &�!%*�+,�-#.-�&%" /0(# !�"%#"1#2�&%)/%2(# !�$'('����3��������
4��5��6��������7���������
�8���������
��9���
:	���8��3������������
��������������������������
:	������;�����������	�������������
���5��
����8����5����	9��	�5�
��
�����<���������������
���8���8���3������
������<���������9����3�������������������������������������	�8�9��������	���5��<=�����<>���������������8��������������������3��9���������	�5�
����5��
��3�������;����8��������5��
����<����������������
����8��?�5������9��@�8�������������5����������	�5�
����5��
��3����5���9���������
���8�������
�3���
����
�����<���A����3���������8��;��������������������8�����������
��������
�����������<=�����<>������������5������������5�=<=����B<>��������5�������
�8���<��C�����
������5���
������;����8���8��������
�8�������8����������;������
�������8�;����9��8�������8��5�����������3����<��A����������9����;��;�	�8���4��	����5����8��8�	���������������<��A��9����3���������������������;����9��5���5������8	
�8�
	��	��������������;�������������9���������8������8�8��8����3�8��������5��

�����	9��
��������������������3�����8��	9��
���������8�	�������������<��D�)#%/$�"#(%�E#"#(�*#//�F%�!%2%""'&G�( �E%&#)G�'//�)#%/$�H'&'1%(%&"�H& H "%$<���IJ+� KLMKNM��OMLP,�QRLSDTMQUK��C����	
�������������������
������
��;���������������	����5��83�
�8�
�9���5�����8���������
����������
��������	
�����������������
���C�
�������V
<�W	�����������
�������<�C��������
�������������	����5��	���������������

�������8�V���
����	�
��?�V�@�������
���������	�
�������6���X��5��6�9�������8��55�
��
���5�������
�5���8����������<��C�����������8��������:	���8�5���
����������5�����5���8�������
�;��4����IY�( �+I�$'G"������
�	8������88�������+�( �Z�*%%["�������
��������8���<������;����9��8���3���8������8��8��\�]�5������;��������������������5������������������
�5���	�����9���3�9���������8���<��IJZ� +,�KLMKNM��,DTD�D�̂ _MKMTMQU�RDSDNLTLSK��C������������
��	�3�������������8�8�����
:	����������������������9���8����������
���������9��
��3������:	���8�����	��������
��������8��������������	������������
��5���������8��3���������
�8�����<��C�������������8��������
�	8��
�����5���������
��������������������

���<������������	���������V\̀ ��;������
	���������8�8����������8�������

���<���������
���������;���������������������
�����8��������3�8�8��������������	���������������88�������
���<�����	�
���8���
��3������������
�����������	9��
�����
�����8	��������8����������5��	�����	������������
��8���	�����9���8��������
�8�����������������9���
����������5����8��

����
�
����5����:	�������8��������<��̀ ���������3����9���5���������������5����������8���5�
������5�����	�5�
���8��	9�	�5�
��abcdefgdhighdj�gkeg�djlhadjf�mfecj�nccfjgo�pafgebijf�5������	�
��?�q�@�fgeganbf�ebprnd�mjsithfanb�unbjfov�	�8���8���	�
����
��3����������������������?�@�
��9����3��;�8����������5���8�8����������5����������
�q�
��3���?q�wq@�8������
��8���

xyz{|}~�������y����x���������������������������������xx���



����������	
�������������������
������
������������������
������������������

��	������� !�������
������"��#���������$���%���"�����#��#�&#���������������������������'��������� ����()*��"�����+��,�� ������+������������
����
��� �����
�	����������������$���%���������
� ����,����'��
����
�� �	��������"����,���"��� �����������-��./�0123425�067819�:1;41<79�0644=79>�%���������	�+���?�����+������@�������A��-��$B��$C�������@�����
���
��+�������� A�)������� �����	�����D�� �� � -�ECC��./�0123425�067819�FG3<7641G<3�=GH�I15;7H2GJ�K=7=41<173�������
�(���	������ � -��%(�L	����M�������
��������@�����	�+����A�#�&#�(���+���� � � -�ECC"��L	�'����"�?�+���������� � -��CC��BC�@�������� ��������
��+�������
��������� A�����������"��	������ � -������
����?���!�����������	�������� ��������#����� � � -�C$B����#�
�� �?����� � � -�E�����
� ���NG17J9�0;6751�O9P13�=GH�K=7=41<173>�������
�)�������	�
�� � -�Q?#R��CCC��(��@�����	�+����A��#��(���+����� � � -�BC"��S�������������	���� � -��CC�����BC�����(���
��!�#���������� � -�T�R�@�	'��
����������A�L	�'����"�(���
����	�
�������� -�ECC�EBC�@�������� A��UVW� KIXYNZO�0NF0[FZ�F\0OI][N\O�̂\/�N\NI:_�0X]IZN�0_0ON[0��./�0123425�FG3<7641G<3�093<14��%�����
�� ����"�������	������'��� '� �����������	�������,������������
� ��������'�����
���+� �,��� ������ ��������������������,����
�	��� �����������	 ��� �,�������������
���������	�
�����
���'����"����������������
������������,����
�����'��� '� �"���	�
����������������"�B�̀a����E�Cb�̀a$���%���������� �
�'���"�������	��������+�����������"��� ���� ����+� ������
� �������������""�
��
�$�����������
���� ��	������
�'���"��������������� �����������a���������	��+����� 	���� ����������� �+���'�������"�������
���	������ ������ ��+������+������ �$��(
����� �"��c�'������,���������
��������	 ����������������,��"��� �
��,�������'����������+�� �� !���,��d�efghij�gklmenoplq�mrhl�ostsmsiu�mrp�simfgjhnmsgi�gv�lpsltsn�wig�jemex�����$��y����+���������������� ���������
�����������
��+������+� ������������+����"�#�&#��������
��������,���������
�����Q��z��{���� ���
���
����$��#��	��������"��� ������������������ ��	����������	�������������������a� ���""�� ���"��� �
��,������������'������� �������'��	��+���

����,������ ����	 ����������
������@�A$��

|}~�����������}����|���������������������������������||���



����������	
�������������������
������
������������������
������������������

�������� !"#$%� &'� � � � �����(#)*+,#-� !"#$%� &'��.���/	����0�1230�45�6��7�������8������8�
�����9�������
��9�����
��9���	���:�������;����������������<�=���
����
�
�<>������
��<��?	�
@�������A�9��9�������9�������9�B��9�88���������
�����<���/	����0�8����8�
��������
�������������	���9�8��������
	�����A��������������A�9�����@�������������8����
����9�������������?	���������	9�
�	����C�D�
��/EF��
�������������������������9������
��9������
����
��G���������:����H�;�9I�9����
�������9�I�	��������CH�
���	�	��<���9
����8��������������������HJ����K��L��<���������/��M����=����������������������I��9�	>���9����������9�F�I�9����9�:���9�
���<�������C��/	����0�8���9�����������:�����������/	�	���0����8	������������9��9�
���������A����8�:������
@����9�����9�8���9�����������8���9�N����
�������9��������������:�����
�������9����9�:���9��9�����
��������8���9�:��@�����	
�������A������
��������9��8���9�N�����
�����C��.�����������������9�8�������9������������9���
��	�A������8�E�OE��9��E�������������������/EF�9���������
��:��:����	����B������/	�	���0���8�:�����������9���8���9���<�����:��������������E��E�OE���H����9��������9����	����9�9�����	�9�����@��K����/EF�9��������C��.������@��K���������9�8���/EF�9�����������<����������8�������
������9���
��9����8����E�OE���������
�����C���E����������
��<�����@�9��8�����9���9���9�8��9������9�	����������������@��K�����	�A��������9��8���?	���9C��"#$%P$Q�RS#TU,�"+!TQ#�",%V#P%����������������������	��������������WKE;��JJJ��

�������9�L���
����	�
��=�L�>���������	�
��8����
?	��������8��������������
�9���C���

XYZ[\]̂_�̀_abcYdb�eXf�ghijkjkjlkkmmlnogpliqhrlqshsiioXX̀ st



����������	
�������������������
������
������������������
������������������

�
 !""#$%�&'()*+,,,�-..$"$%/0$1�234/.0�5!6%.$�7-258��9���:;<=��>>>��

�������?�@���
����	�
���������������A����
���?���B��A	��������
���������	�
��C	�������?����	
��D��B��������������
��������E���������C	��?�����?��������	�A�
���A�����	
�	��F��9���:;<=��>>>�����G	����?�B�������������
��?��@���<��������������������?�HIJ�KLMLNOMNPKIMOQIJOMN�RQOKS�TJSLUVW�IJ�RXSJI�QOKSV�HIJ�SLYZ�[SO[KOY�JSYIJ\]��̂SYIJ\S\�HO_S[�
�������
����
����@���<��������������������?�����
��
̀�QOKS[�HIJ�RQOKS�TJSLUV�YIJJS_LQOIM�B����a	�����a<b���
��?�?�?������?���	�
�������	��������������?�B���?�?�?�����A���c�dc���?�������
G	����������������A��

	���?��<�����������?�c����������F��������A�
���C��A����A�	��������:;<=��>>>��@����������C������A�����E���e����<���������
�D����������	���	����������	�D������?�����F�9����@�������������̀��A�?����������	�A�
���?�C	���?��A�����	
�	���B����������?�����B������?�	����B����	��	����?��F��������������fgh� +i�5j25k2 �l(mnj o�p2j'i� (jq5������������������
��A���?��������������������?�C���������
��r�������?�����F������
����������
��������D�������?���?�B��������������?�
���?�������A�A���?�����������������
��c�dc���A��	�D���?������9@�����	��������A����
��s�?����������?������?���������
�?�����
G	���������?������
��
������	�F��t��������������
������������������	��?�����
G	���������������������������?�
��B�����������G	�����������������?���uFvFu�C���BF�����fghgf��l%!w$.0�k/x/y$3$x0z�564$%{#|#!x�/x1�p#$"1�m4$%/0#!x|� %$}��l%!w$.0�k/x/y$3$x0�~�p#$"1� %$}�564$%{#|#!x�50/����uF��u�������
��r��������F��u����F������
����������
������

����������������������������������������������������������



����������	
�������������������
������
������������������
������������������

 !"#$"%�&'!()*� +,(%!�-'.�/!%+(."')�0(!1�23�4�5���������
���6���7�8�
��
�����3�425�9	�����6���7�8�
��
����:;<!(�=(+>!%;� ;-??�23�425��@�����
��������3�425�A������
������7�������BCDCE�EF�F-;-�G,-H";*�I##,(-'%!�-'.�G,-H";*�0+';(+H��8����J���7�J�KJ����������L����������������
��	�M������7�����7�������7	
�����7��������������	����	���������7������J�KJ�
�M�����3��N���������8@�9	����O�9JN��7���������
���������P��
����������7����������L��������������������Q���P����	7�����	�����������7�	�L������������������	7�
�	���������	���	����������	�M��������3��R���P����	7���������L�STU�VWXYZ�[\Z]�̂_̀ a]bUZ�cU]̀T]dU�Ẑcd[\�[_̀ \̂SefU�[df�gaUheUdij�ZUdẐŜb̂Sjk��l_̀ a]bU_UdSZ�S]�������	7��������M���������������7����Q�����������2��7R���7����������Q��������
�M�����L�������
�7����P����P�7���L��m	�
��Q�7P�7��3��R�����L��������������������������Q	��������
����
��������n���o���������
������������	���3��p�����������������L����
�������Q	��������	�L���������������������P����	�
����Q�����������Q�������������L���
����7�9JN������Q������4q3qq�r�L���	������������2�qqq�	�����M����������������753��N����L������

�������7�@���
����	�
��4sAJt��qqq��@�5���Q�����
m	��������L�7����������
�7����
�M�������7��LL��������������	��������77��J�������������	7�������P���������������M�����Q����Q����7u��L����������������������7���7���������������������m	�����������3��8���	����L������@��P������7������7	
���Q���
�7�	�L��������
�M�������7�L��7�7�����Q	���3��BCDCv�EF� !"#$"%�F-;-�=(+%!##"')��N���
����������L��������������
�7�����
m	�������P��w��������P�������
�7����P����Q�����M����7����
��M�7���7��������7�L���7���M����L������
��������x�	�����8�n��3�����������7���M�������
��M�7�7����P����Q������
��7��7��M��	���7�L���y�zy���	������3������M����P�����
�	7��������
m	�������������L�������J�KJ��7��J�����������J�KJ��7��J�����7���
�
���7������L����������7��������������L�L���7����������3����8����������o�7����������
����
������P��wL��P�P����
�������L{�� |�J�L���������z����������z�8��
��}7���z�8��
��6�����R���w���
w��|��	�L�
�����������~���	�
�������	�����
�M��	�����������7�J�
��M����� ������������|�J�L��
���������
����K�������A�������7�������8���������
�J�L��
���������
�����	����|��	������
��	�L�
�����������J�L��
���������
���7�K���
�����������{�����������|�9�pz�	���|���p�4@L���7�75�|�6�����������
w�|�R�7P�7���}n������4R�}5�� �|��������
w�8������������� � � � � �

����������������������������������������������������������



����������	
�������������������
������
������������������
������������������

 �!"#��!�����������$������%���
����������%��������������
�$�������
�������$����������������&��������'�()�*�+,,-.�%��������$���/�����%���0�%���$�$����������
����������1��2343*�56(,787,(9(:)6�96;�<,8)7(��������������������
����0������������������������
�$����������������������������	=��	�%�
�����	
�	����
�������������>����������������
����?�������$�%��$�=������������
�������������
����	
��$��������%�	�����$�%��
�	���>���1��!���$����0����=�����������$��������0��0������/����������
������$�
�/����$����$�����	������/���
������$���$���/�$�%����0��������$������%��/����=�����������������$�/���
�������%�����%�����������
���0��������������/����=��1������������0���������
�$	
��������������=	������
���������������
����$�������
�$�������$�����������������
�
�������������������
�	�������������=���$�
���/���%������%�/���=����@	�%���������������
�%����	���1�������=	������
���������?�����
������������������	$���%��@	�
����������$�������0�/������������������������
��������
��
������������������������
������������	������
���������������%��
���1��!��������
���������������%���%���������%%�
������������������%�������
�������0��
���%%�
�������������������%�����0�/���������$	
�$�=����������
��	�/��1��A�����?����������0�/�������$���0������
��������
��������
��������
���������������	
��������������������������%��������%�	�$������������B0�����������������C��%�	������%��
�	������$������������������
��=�����������$1�������=	������
�������������>�����������������������
�0�/�����������	=�������=������=�������	�������=	��
���������%�
����%���������=�	��������������������%������	=�	�%�
�1������������0�������
��������������
�$����	������/��������$��$������=	�����������$���������������������%�����$�����$�������������0��	
�������������������
�$����
��=���&���
��$�%�����������
����$�$�������1��!��������=	�������
��
	����$�%�������$����0�����
�	$�D��  �E�������	��������	$��� �E�������	��#��@	�
��� �F������ �G����%�� �������������$����=��
�1��!����������������������$��$������=	���$��������������
��=��
��
	����$��$�$�������
�%�
������=	�������
��=�������%������=	���������
��=��
��
	����$1��!��������=	����0��
���������
���$���$����	=�����%��������������$������
�������	��$������=	���1��H�����$/�
�$������=	����
��=��������$��%�$�����$�������	=��@	��������
�����?1��E%��	%%�
������������
���0���������%������������/����=���%����0�������������������
������0��
��
�$	
��������������
��������������
���=��������������=	������������$������/���������$�
��=�������%�%�������������������%��������������
�$���1��E%���������
���0��������
�����������������������/����=�������������=	�����������0�������0�������/��
��������%�������������������=	��0�������=��
���=����$�	������0�������$�����$��$������$1��!������	�����%�����������
�$�����
@	��������$��������������0����=���������$�����������������$��
��=�������%���$������$������
����������������
����$�$������$�������������1��

IJKLMNOP�QPRSTJUS�VIW�XYZ[\[\[]\\̂ ]̂_̀Xa]ZbYc]bdYdZZ̀IIQde



����������	
�������������������
������
������������������
������������������

 !"� #$%#&%'�()$*+,%(-#�#+.$,/������������������
��������00����������	1
����
�������2�
��	�����������
�������2�����2�3����
�2	
����0��������
��	�4�����2�
���������������3��������������������
�����	�����00��
�������������������	1��
���2������4���������
������
��3��������5����6�2�������
���0�����	�2������7����
��2�8�����9:���������
�0�
�8�;��2�;4����������������
���	�2������
��1��2�4�����2�����2������
������3�������<�2���������������
�����4���������	���������2����4�����3�����2��

������=	�������:��>!"� )?@ABCD�'@EDE��>!F��  G�#BHEIHC�GJDJ�+CKLHEHDH@M�,L?MNBO�)?HCB� ��P������������1���3��������������	�Q������
���0��������������������	����������
���0��
�����
=	��������
����������2��
��1�2����������������R�� � ,L?MSNBO�'@ED�#HDB�THEHD�JMU�?BVHMBIBMD�@U�WHMB�W@CJDH@ME� XYZY""!""� [� !YS>!"IH� G�EBHEIHC�?BVWBCDH@M�WHMBE�\�]?@CBEEHM̂� X Y_ZY""!""�%MDB?]?BDJDH@M�JMU�?B]@?D� X "Z"""!""�,@DJW� X ̀YZ"""!""�+UUHDH@MJW�a@̂�+MJWOEHE�JMU�*BTHEHM̂�*B]@?D�b(]DH@MJWc� XF"Z"""!""���P���P	�Q������
���
�	2����1	��������������2���������0����3���������
��	�4��������
�����Q���2����4�
��R��d:��	�4���2��������������
�����2������������
�����	������2��=	�������������e������������������������
��4�������	�������2���4��3�����������
����:���:�f�1���g������2�����1���g������0������=	�������2�����������h0�����	�4��������i�8�	�����8	��4�������2��	�����P�j��:���:������������0�������
�����	������4��������	�4������2���	���������=	�����������������2�����2���:���:�������
��=	���������	�������	�����2����������2�����
=	����������������k��
�	2����	���������=	���������	
Q������������������������0���2������������������������2���:��l:�5���	������2��=	��������0���2�������
�:��m:�������
������
���6������
����5��f��������2�8�;���������:��n:�������
����
�������o:������1	������
������

pqrstuvw�xwyz{q|z�}p~��������������������������������ppx��



����������	
��������	��������������������	���������������������������� �

!"�#����������������"�$�����������������%�����������&������'�����������'����������������&������(
�������'���&�)�*��������+��������,-./,�0123�'���������������)����&��(
��������4���5��'������������'�'���&���������"��6���&��������������4����&
���&�����������'������������)�����"�����'�����&����'�������������)���
�&���&
��������)�*���������7��4�����89��4��������"��:����9����9�����������������������������9���
���������'���������������������#;<�������������������
�9������������)����������&
�������)�*���&�����&
�������������
�9������
�&��������"���=>/� ?@ABCDE�FA3E3�GAE�HIDJK0C0�LI�EMC�NK@IOC2�?@LDC���"�	��)�����&4��'��:�������� $���&����	��)�P�;(
�������Q������+���&�R����"�����&��S�� TU��"��V��"�� ��"�7���������&4��$���&����	��)�P�;(
�������Q������+���&�R����"�����&��S�� TU��"��V��"��WXYZ[�\]̂�_̀a]bĉ�̀def�ghaii�cf�jfkdldfb�ĉ�mn]̀kaònk�lnk�faoh�noopkkf]of�a]b�dg�gpcqfò�̀n�ep̀pai�on]gf]̀�ĉ�mniidfk�a]b�rZs\t���"�������������������������������������������������&�''��
����������������&���������������4���&�
����������4������'����&)�������&��������&�������������"�����
����	�������������������������&���������
����������5���������'����4����*����
���'������
4������&�������"�����������������������������
&�&���������������������"����
�&�#;<����(
������������������������	������)
�&�4���4�������9�&�������'�������������'��"�����������������9����4����+�����������&����&��������������9����4����������
&��������������)��'���
4������&����9�������&�
��"���=>=�� uvELAI1J�?@ABCDE�FA3E3�GAE�HIDJK0C0�LI�EMC�NK@IOC2�?@LDC��#�����
������)���������������������������������������������������'���)������'�����������4������&���&���&���������&�'����9����4���)�������&����'������������)����&���������'���������&����'��&�������������������&����9�
��"��%����������������������������9��������������������)�)������9��������&������&�����4
����(
���������������������)�������&���������9����4�����&���������������9����������4
���������������4��
��&��'���9����������������9����4��"����:��
�&������&������#;<��)����4��&�������� ����������)�������&�)����4���������������
����'������������)�������������
&�������������
��������"�����
���������������������)�������&���������9����4���'�������+�������)�������������
���4��������&�)������	������)�����������������������������������&�&�������9������'�������������&����'������'��)��������w��

xyz{|}~�������y����x���������������������������������xx���



�����������	
�������������������
������
������������������
������������������

� �!��"��#���"�$"�����%��������"���&�� � � � � '�(()%����� �*���
��������
����������+���	�������"�
�"�����!���"���,&� � '�-()%����� �.����"�����/�����+�0���1	���"2�	������3�
	�4��,&� � � � '�5()%���� ��60������������������4����7���%��
��
�������������������	������������"�������
�4���
������0���"�����
�4����� ��60����������7�
�����4����7����0�������������������7���
�������"��%��
����4��������"�����
�4�������"������7	������
������	���������%��������0����"���
��"�7��6$8� ��9�����������
���������4����������������������"�	�"���������������������4�"�"�������
������7�� ��:;<� =>?@A>BCD?>E��9���"���4���7����0������������
��%����
�������0�����0����%��&��F���������0���
�"����������������0��������G���"�G�HG���������	��"������
��"��"��������������	
�������������������
�"����4��	�� ��I���������0�������%�������
�"�����������
����
�����������"�����������"������$�J�"����0�����0���"�������
�����������������0��������$�J�4��	���0�������"������
��0���� �I�F�������������
�"�����
1	��������"�"�������
������������� �I����������"��
��7�������0���"����
�"	��������
��������������"�"������������������K;<� L?MENB>��9����������"�������
��	�4�������7���"�����"�������4�"������������	������������0������	7�	�0�
�������������������������������"�������
����� ��9����"����%�������4�"��������1	���"��	7��	�0�
��
������0���6$8�����������%���G�������"	
����%���� ���������7����4�������������������"��	�4���"��
��7�"�%������"	
�����O������
����"�%�����������
�	
��������������������"����"�����"���0�����	���7���%������
����+�, ���������������O��0��%��"����%��O���%����6$8� �������������	��O�%��0���	���4�����1	����������
������ ��J�	�����	����� ����P���P������� � ���� � ���������������
����

QRSTUVWX�YXZ[\R][�̂Q_�̀abcdcdceddffegh̀iebjakejlalbbhQQYlm



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

2B 
           ACTION 

ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

Collection System Condition Assessment and Optimization Project Fiscal Year
2022/23 Project Budget Augmentation

In 2020, Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) with CDM Smith initiated the Collection
System Condition Assessment and Optimization Project. The goal of the project is to enhance
IEUA's planning and maintenance of the collection assets within the regional and brine sewer
systems by gathering condition assessment data on several critical sewer assets and develop a
comprehensive sewer system maintenance optimization program. The project is scheduled to be
completed by December 2022. On July 20, 2022, the Board of Directors approved a total
project budget augmentation for Project EN19024 from $3,590,419 to $3,919,419 in the RO
Fund and for Project No. EN19028, from $915,000 to $1,256,000 in the NC Fund to complete
the condition assessment scope with CDM Smith with an amendment to perform additional
cleaning and bypassing efforts on two remaining siphons. With the Board approved augmented
budget for each project, staff is recommending a Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/23 budget augmentation
for EN19024 and EN19028 to complete the project as scheduled. The adjustment would adjust
the FY 2022/23 budget for EN19024 from $329,878 to $380,115 ($50,237 increase) and
EN19028 from $70,000 to $463,398 ($393,398 increase). These adjustments would allow
projected spending to align with the augmented total project budget.

1. Approve a FY 2022/23 project budget augmentation for the Regional System Asset
Management Project, No. EN19024, in the amount of $50,237, from $329,878 to $380,115 in
the Regional Operations and Maintenance (10800) Fund;

2. Approve a FY 2022/23 project budget augmentation for the NRW Manhole and Pipeline
Project, No. EN19028, in the amount of $393,398, from $70,000 to $463,398 in the
Non-Reclaimable Wastewater (10500) Fund; and

3. Authorize the General Manager to approve the budget augmentation.

$ 443,635

EN19024/Regional System Asset Management
EN19028/NRW Manhole and Pipeline

If approved, the FY 2022/23 project budget for Project EN19024 will increase from $329,878 to
$380,115 in the RO Fund and for Project No. EN19028, the FY 2022/23 project budget will
increase from $70,000 to $463,398 in the NC Fund. These changes will not increase the total
project budget for each project.

1000 10800 501000 127100 EN19024/EN19028

09/14/22
09/14/22

Engineering, Operations & Water Resources
Finance & Administration

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

N Y

10500 160000 1271001000

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Collection System Condition Assessment and Optimization Project is consistent with the 
IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater Management, specifically the Asset Management and 
Water Quality objectives, that IEUA will ensure that systems are well maintained, upgraded to 
meet evolving requirements, sustainably managed, and accommodate changes in regional 
water use to protect public health, the environment, and meet anticipated regulatory 
requirements.

On July 20th, 2022 IEUA's Board of Directors approved an amendment to CDM Smith’s
contract for a not-to-exceed amount of $659,325
On September 16, 2020, IEUA's Board of Directors approved the service contract with CDM
Smith for a not-to-exceed amount of $2,910,909 for the Condition Assessment and Optimization
of the Collection System, Project Nos. EN19024 & EN19028.

CEQA exempts a variety of projects from compliance with the statute. This project qualifies for
a Statutory Exemption as defined in Section 15262 of the State CEQA Guidelines. When the
project will be implemented, it will be subject to future environmental evaluation.

Attachment 1- PowerPoint 

Statutory Exemption

22157



 

 

Attachment 1 



Collection System Condition Assessment 
and Optimization Project FY 2022/23 Budget 

Augmentation 
Project No. EN19024 and EN19028

Ryan Ward, E.I.T.
Associate Engineer

September 2022



Project Overview/Location

2

Collection Sewer 
System

Brine Sewer 
System

Regional Sewer 
System

Collection Sewer System
• Two independent sewer systems
• Regional Sewer System
• Brine Sewer System

City BSS – Siphons RSS – Siphons

Rancho Cucamonga 4 -

Ontario 5 10

Fontana 3 4

Chino 1 14

Chino Hills - -

Claremont - -

Total Assets 13 28

Total Length of Assets 4,745 feet 9,601 feet
Brine Sewer System (BSS)
Regional Sewer System (RSS)



Project Goals/Objectives

3

• Goals
– Enhance asset data
– Develop risk management framework
– Support asset management best 

practices
• Objectives

– Conduct assessment, inspection and 
cleaning

– Develop maintenance optimization plan

Coordination
Development of Condition 
Assessment Implementation 
Plan

Implementation
Condition Assessments, 
Inspections, and Cleaning

Evaluation
Available Data and 
Information

Optimization
Collection System Enhanced 
Management Program

Path to Meeting Goals & Objectives

Recent Effort: 
Discovery of 

Potential Sewer 
Failure 4-inch hole 

in sewer line 



Project Budget and Schedule

4

Description Cost
Asset Management/Inspection Support (actuals/projected) $1,463,685 

Asset Management $471,687
Inspection Support $991,998

Other Engineering Consulting Support (actuals/projected) $75,000 
Engineering Consultant (GHD Contract)   $75,000 

CDM Smith's Service Contract (actuals/projected) $3,626,734
CDM Smith’s Service Contract $3,626,734

Total Project Budget: $5,175,419 
Total EN19024’s Budget for RSS Assets (RO Fund) $3,919,419
Total EN19028’s Budget for BSS Assets (NC Fund) $1,256,000

Current FY22/23 Budget for EN19024 $329,878
Current FY22/23 Budget for EN19028 $70,000
Requested FY22/23 Budget Augmentation to EN19024 (this action) + $50,237
Requested FY22/23 Budget Augmentation to EN19028 (this action) + $393,398
Adjusted FY22/23 Budget for EN19024: $380,115
Adjusted FY22/23 Budget for EN19028: $463,398

Contract Milestone Date
Complete Condition Assessment Sept. 2022

Complete Planning/Optimization Dec. 2022



Recommendation

5

This project is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater Management, specifically the Asset Management 
objective that IEUA will ensure the Collection's System is well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, 

sustainably managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use to protect public health, the environment, and 
meet anticipated regulatory requirements.

• Approve a FY 2022/23 project budget augmentation for the Regional System 
Asset Management Project, No. EN19024, in the amount of $50,237, from 
$329,878 to $380,115 in the Regional Operations and Maintenance (10800) 
Fund; 

• Approve a FY 2022/23 project budget augmentation for the NRW Manhole 
and Pipeline Project, No. EN19028, in the amount of $393,398, from 
$70,000 to $463,398 in the Non-Reclaimable Wastewater (10500) Fund; and

• Authorize the General Manager to approve the budget augmentation.



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

2C 
           ACTION 

ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

RMPU Project - Budget Increase, Agreement Amendment, and Construction Change
Order Approval

In May 2017, Chino Basin Watermaster (CBWM) and Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA)
executed a cost sharing agreement, Task Order No. 9, under the Recharge Master Plan Update
(RMPU) to implement the groundwater recharge improvements within the Chino Basin at
Wineville, Jurupa, and RP-3 basins. These improvements will enhance the groundwater basin by
adding approximately 2,921 acre-feet per year (AFY) of stormwater and 2,905 AFY of recycled
water for basin recharge. On June 16, 2021, the Board of Directors awarded the construction
contract under Project No. RW15003.06 to MNR Construction, Inc. in the amount of
$15,480,880 for the construction at Wineville and Jurupa basins and force main construction
within Ontario and Fontana. Currently, additional funds are needed to address higher
construction cost due to changes in the site conditions, delays to the schedule, and scope changes
to the project. At the August 25th Board meetings at CBWM, the Board agreed to increase the
project's budget through the approval of the amended Task Order No. 9. The following is staff's
recommendation (1) increase the total project budget under RW15003.06 by $3.26 M to address
higher construction costs, (2) finalize the execution of the amended CBWM/IEUA Task Order
No. 9, and (3) execute a change order in a not-to-exceed amount of $3.16 M with the Contractor,
MNR to resolve utility conflicts with buried utilities and to extend the schedule.

1. Approve the total project budget augmentation for RW15003.00 in Fiscal Year 2022/23 from
$24,004,424 to $27,260,512;
2. Approve the second amendment to IEUA and CBWM’s Cost Sharing Agreement, Task Order
No.9, for the project under RW15003.06;
3. Approve the construction change order with MNR Construction, Inc. for Project No.
RW15003.06 at a not-to-exceed amount of $3,161,995 which increases the contract from
$15,669,068.27 to $18,831,063.27 (20% increase); and
4. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contracts, subject to non-substantive changes.

$ 3,256,088

RW15003.06/Wineville, Jurupa, Force Main

The budget increase will only impact fiscal year spending; however, the cost is offset with
nearly $9.7 M in state and federal grants. The remaining cost is funded by available Clean Water
State Revolving Funds which will be an added debt service to CBWM after one year from
construction completion. CBWM pays 100% of the cost under RW15003.06.

1000 10300 126100 4235000 RW15003

09/14/22
09/14/22

Engineering, Operations & Water Resources
Finance & Administration

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

N Y

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The projects under the 2013 RMPU which include the Wineville, Jurupa and Force Main are
consistent with the IEUA's Business Goal of Water Reliability, specifically the Groundwater
Recharge objective that IEUA will maximize groundwater recharge projects in the region
through strategic, cost-effective partnerships, and development.

On July 20, 2022, the Board of Directors ratified the change order with MNR Construction, Inc.
in the amount of $188,188.27.

On June 16, 2021, the Board of Directors awarded the construction contract for the Project No.
RW15003.06 to MNR Construction, Inc. in the amount of $15,480,880.

The RMPU Project was under a comprehensive Program Environmental Impact Report which
the Board adopted as complete on March 15, 2017. Within this report specific mitigation
measures are a part of the Project that will be implemented under the attached Mitigation
Measures and Reporting Program (MMRP).

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint Presentation
Attachment 2 - Second amendment to IEUA and CBWM’s Cost Sharing Agreement, Task Order
No.9
Attachment 3 - Change Order with MNR Construction, Inc. which is a not-to-exceed amount of
$3,161,995.

Program Environmental Impact Report (Finding of Consistency)

22194



 

 

Attachment 1 



Recharge Master Plan Update Project
Wineville/Jurupa/Force Main Construction 

Project No. RW15003.06
AUGMENT TOTAL BUDGET – AMEND COST SHARING AGREEMENT – CHANGE ORDER APPROVALS

Joel Ignacio, PE
Project Manager

September 14, 2022



2

Overall RMPU Project Update

Basin Projects Additional Recharge Goal
Stormwater Recycled Water

San Sevaine Basin 642 4,100
Lower Day Basin 993 -
Victoria Basin 75 120
Montclair Basins 96 -

Wineville, Jurupa, RP3 Basins 2,921 2,905

Total: 4,727 7,125



3

RW15003.06 Background/Scope

Installation of a 
stormwater force main 
system (pump station)

New Recharge Facility 

Increase stormwater diversion

Added recharge basin

Project Benefit:
• Increase stormwater recharge to 2,921 acre-feet per year
• Increased recycled water 2,905 acre-feet per year (with RP-3)



4

Construction Status
CONSTRUCTION WINEVILLE/JURUPA/FORCE MAIN

CONTRACT AMOUNT
MNR’s Original Contract Total $   15,480,880 

Project’s Original Contingency $     1,548,088 

Construction Progress 49%

Contractor Invoiced 49%

SCHEDULE DATE
Completion Date based on Baseline Schedule: 5/12/2023

Schedule Elapsed (on Approved Baseline Schedule): 59%



5

Increasing Construction Cost
• Unforeseen Field Conditions

— Conflicts with buried utilities

• Schedule Delays

— Permit delays at start of construction

— Supply/demand issues on change conditions

— Delaying completion to mid to late 2023

• Needed Scope Changes

— Added manhole access

— Fencing

— Utility changes

— Rubber Dam design changes

• Others

— Additional Contingencies

• Impacts 

— Requesting a $4.8 million contingency fund to address increasing cost

— Current Contingency: $1.5 million

Changed site conditions, 
56%

Needed Scope Changes, 6%

Schedule Delays, 21%

Other, 17%

Percent Breakdown 
Projected $4.8 M Contingency Fund 

$800 K

$1.0 M

$300 K

$2.7 M



6

Change Order Request
• Resolving Utility Conflicts 

— Identified 89 buried utilities (200% more) along 
Jurupa Street/Road (Cities of Fontana and 
Ontario) 

— Revised 11 sheets of the construction plans
— Changing alignment for nearly 90% of the 2.1 

miles of new pipe
— Change Order cost: $2,411,995

• Extending Contract Schedule
— Permit delays at start of construction
— Availability of pipes delayed
— Delaying completion to mid to late 2023
— Additional overhead cost to manage extended 

schedule
— Change Order cost: $750,000

• Change Order cost of $3,161,995
— 20% Change Order Ratio

Revised Construction Plan (Sheet 78C-21)

Initial Construction Plan (Sheet 78C-21)

Additional 
utilities/relocate new 

deeper
6



7

Impact to Project Budget (RW15003.06)

Description (Wineville/Jurupa/Force Main)
RW15003.06

Budget
(A)

Cost to Date
(B)

Remaining
(A-B)

Revised Item
(D)

Impact
(D-A)

Design Services $1,960,940 $1,960,940 $0 
Preliminary Design Contract (actual cost) $269,300 $269,300 $0 
Design Contract (actual cost) $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $0 
Environmental/Permits/Bid/Admin (actual costs) $191,640 $191,640 $0 
Construction Services $1,231,044 $494,035 $737,009 
Design Consultant Construction Services $397,977 $201,907 $196,070 
IEUA Construction Services $833,067 $292,128 $540,939 
Construction $17,028,968 $7,527,594 $11,939,667 
Construction Contract (MNR Construction) $15,480,880 $7,339,405 $10,391,579 
Contingency - Change Orders $1,548,088 $188,188 $1,359,900 $4,804,176 ($3,256,088)

Total: $20,220,952 $9,982,569 $12,676,675 $4,804,176 ($3,256,088)

Augment project budget to increase project contingency funds from $1.55 M to $4.80 M ($3.26 M increase)



8

Project Budget & Schedule

Change Order Ratio:  20%
Contingency Remaining: 30%

Project Milestone Date
Construction
Contract Award Jun 2021
Project Completion May 2023

Description Cost
Design Services $1,960,940 
Preliminary Design Contract (actual cost) $269,300 
Design Contract (actual cost) $1,500,000 
Environmental/Permits/Bid/Admin (actual costs) $191,640 

Construction Services $1,231,044 
Design Consultant Construction Services (actual) $397,977 
IEUA Construction Services (projected) $833,067 

Construction $20,285,056 
Construction Contract (MNR Construction) $15,480,880 
Executed Change Orders $188,188 
Change Orders (this action) $3,161,995 
Remaining Adjusted Contingency $1,453,993 

Augmented Total Project Cost for RW15003.06 (sub-project): $23,477,040 
Augmented Total Project Cost for RW15003.00 (parent project): $27,260,512 
Current Budget for RW15003.00 (parent project): $24,004,424 
Increasing Budget for Parent Project RW15003.00 (this action): $3,256,088 

The Project is funded with $10.8 M grants and the remaining cost is financing with CWSRF



Phase Start Finish Projected Cost

Project Development 7/1/2014 12/17/2014 $14,600 

Pre-Design 12/18/2014 11/16/2016 $407,900 

Environmental Impact 12/18/2014 4/20/2016 $179,500 

Permits 12/18/2014 1/8/2018 $52,400 

Design 6/22/2017 12/31/2020 $1,372,500 

Bid and Award 1/1/2021 6/15/2021 $15,000

Construction 6/22/2021 12/31/2023 $23,254,440 

Total $25,296,340 

Available Grants

Stormwater 
Distribution 

System/Wineville 
Basin/Jurupa 

Basin

RP-3 Basin Total

State Water Resources Control 
Board - Storm Water Grant 
Program

$8,994,167 $809,214 $9,803,381 

United States Department of 
Interior Bureau of Reclamation -
Drought Resiliency

- $290,000 $290,000 

United States Department of 
Interior Bureau of Reclamation -
Secure Water Act

$740,000 - $740,000

Total $9,734,167 $1,099,214 $10,833,381

9

Amendment to Cost Sharing Agreement

CBWM/IEUA/Grant

Stormwater 
Distribution 

System/Wineville 
Basin/Jurupa 

Basin

RP-3 Basin Total

Watermaster $13,742,873 $360,043 $14,102,916
IEUA - $360,043 $360,043
Grants $9,734,167 $1,099,214 $10,833,381

Total $23,477,040 $1,819,300 $25,296,340

Total Project Budget Breakdown Specific RW15003.06/.05 Total Available Grants Specific to RW15003.06/.05

Revised Cost Share Breakdown Specific to RW15003.06/.05 Chino Basin Watermaster’s Actions:

Aug. 11 - All three Watermaster Pools unanimously agreed 
to have the Advisory Committee consider the amendment

Aug. 18 – The Advisory unanimously agreed to recommend 
the amendment for Board approval

Aug. 25 – CBWM Board to finalize approval and 
authorization of amendment to augment budget



10

Recommendation

The RMPU Project is consistent with the IEUA’s Business Goal of Water Reliability specifically the Groundwater 
Recharge objective that IEUA will maximize groundwater recharge projects in the region through strategic, cost-effective 

partnerships, and development.

• Approve the total project budget augmentation for RW15003.00 in Fiscal Year 2022/23
from $24,004,424 to $27,260,512;

• Approve second amendment to IEUA and CBWM’s Cost Sharing Agreement, Task Order
No.9, for Project No. RW15003.06;

• Approve the construction change order with MNR Construction, Inc. for Project No.
RW15003.06 at a not-to-exceed amount of $3,161,995 which increases the contract from
$15,669,068.27 to $18,831,063.27 (approximately a 20% increase); and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the contracts, subject to non-substantive
changes.



   Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

3A 
INFORMATION 

ITEM 



Recycled Water Groundwater Recharge 
Update

Andy Campbell, PG, CHG
Groundwater Recharge Supervisor

September 2022



2

Annual Recharge Monthly Accumulation
Recycled WaterStormwater



3

Groundwater Recharge Deliveries
Past 12 Months

R – Record Monthly RW Recharge in
Sept. 2021, January, February, May and July 2022

R
R R

R
R



4

Groundwater Recharge 10-Year History



55

Recycled Water (RW) Deliveries

Direct 
Use 

Through
May



6

Summer 2022 RP-3 Maintenance

July 13



7

• Fall Maintenance Activities (Preparing for Winter Rains)
—CalFire Crew Trash Pickup
—Graffiti Abatement
—Staff Gauge Repairs
—Gopher/Squirrel Hole Abatement

Upcoming Recharge Site Maintenance



88

Record-Setting RW GWR Team
Fiscal Year Delivered for Recharge

2019/20 16,252.8 AF
2021/22 17,054.4 AF



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

3B 
INFORMATION 

ITEM 



RP-5 Expansion Project Update: 
September 2022

Project Nos. EN19001 and EN19006

Brian Wilson, Principal Engineer 
Vicky Salazar, Senior Associate Engineer

September 2022



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Jul 2020 ‐ Jan 2025 Construction

Jan 12 ‐ Jun 21 Aeration Basin #4 & Blower Bldg

Jan 25 ‐ Nov 7 MBR Phase1 

Dec 14 ‐ Jul 25 MBR Phase 2

Jan 4 ‐ Sep 23 Digesters

Feb 15 ‐ Aug 16 Thickening

Jan 18 ‐ Aug 24 Dewatering

Jul 1 ‐ Jun 14 Aeration Basin #3

Construction Award

Jul 15
Biosolids Milestone

Jan 11
Project Completion

Jan 10

Day 777 of 1640 = 47%

Data date: 8/31/22

RP-5: Project Status

2

Role Firm Contract This Month’s 
Payment Total Paid % Complete

Contractor WM Lyles $334,516,307 $6,783,899 $165,271,248 49%

Designer Parsons $33,670,711 $281,062 $31,155,943 93%

Construction 
Management Arcadis $21,125,523 $339,214 $9,160,702 43%



3

RP-5: Project Status Changes

Amount Quantity

Original Contact $329,982,900

Change Order (CO) $ 4,533,407 161
Request For Deviation (RFD) $ 2,696,610 137
Changes Total (CO+RFD) $7,230,017 298
% Change of Contract 2.19%

% of Contingency Used 21.9%

Change Type Amount
$ Millions

% Of 
Changes

Design Errors & Omissions $ 3.3 45%

District Requested $2.6 36%

Differing Site Conditions $ 2.1 29%

Contractor Requested $ -0.8 -10%



Parsons Contract Amendment 

• RP-5 Expansion Engineering
Services During Construction

• Design changes
• CO/RFD/RFI support
• Value engineering support
• Start-up and training support

• Mountain Ave., RP-2, and
Butterfield Ranch Lift Stations

• Finalize designs
• Bid services
• Engineering Services During

Construction (ESDC)

4



5

RP-5: Major Activity Areas 

Construction Staff
• WML Craft: 162
• WML Project: 40
• IEUA & CM: 15
• Total: 217



6

RP-5: Major Activities

Influent Pump Station



7

RP-5: Major Activities

Headwork Influent Box Expansion



8

RP-5: Major Activities

Fine Screens



9

RP-5: Major Activities

Primary Clarifiers



10

RP-5: Major Activities

Primary Effluent Pipeline



11

RP-5: Major Activities

MBR Phase 1



12

RP-5: Major Activities

Thickening Building



13

RP-5: Major Activities

Acid Phase Digester Building



14

RP-5: Major Activities

Gas Phase Digester Building



15

RP-5: Major Activities

Dewatering Building



16

RP-5: Major Activities

Solids South Timelapse



Questions?



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

3C 
INFORMATION 

ITEM 



Engineering and Construction 
Management Project Updates

Jason Marseilles, P.E.

Manager of Engineering & Construction Management

September 2022



2

Project 
Location

Map



3

SCADA Enterprise System - (Regional Water 
Recycling Plant No. 1)
Project Goal: Increase Reliability

Total Project Budget: $16.2M
Project Completion: July 2024

Design Percent Complete: 90%
Phase Consultant/

Contractor
Current 
Contract

Amendments/
Change Orders

Design
(Current) Eramosa $1.37M 14%

Construction TBD $0 0%

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Cayatte, Pierre

Assistant/Associate Engineer: Nhothsavath, Cathy

Administrative Assistant: Wallace & Associates

Inspector: Jones, Nick



4

RP-1 Flare Improvements 
Project Goal: Enhance Reliability and Permit Compliance

Total Project Budget: $9.2M
Project Completion: December 2022

Construction Percent Complete: 80%

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Zughbi, Jamal

Assistant/Associate Engineer: Tao, Justin

Administrative Assistant: Woods

Inspector: GK & Associates

Digester Gas Discharge Piping with Expansion Loop

Phase Consultant/
Contractor

Current 
Contract

Amendments/
Change Orders

Design Lee & Ro $676k 31%

Construction
(Current) W.M. Lyles $6.4M 16%



5

Montclair Basin Improvement
Project Goal: Increase Groundwater Recharge

Total Project Budget: $1.8M
Project Completion: June 2024

Construction Percent Complete: 0%

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Ignacio, Joel

Assistant/Associate Engineer: Ward, Ryan 

Administrative Assistant: GK & Associates

Inspector: TBD

Phase Consultant/Contract
or

Current 
Contract

Amendments/
Change Orders

Design
(Current) Carollo $155k 7%

Construction TBD $0 0%


	Agenda 1
	Agenda 2
	Agenda 3
	Agenda 4
	Consent Item 1A
	Consent Item 1B
	Consent Item 1C
	Action Item 2A
	Action Item 2B
	Action Item 2C
	Information Item 3A
	Information Item 3B
	Information Item 3C



